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Financial Highlights
MBRE

For the year ended 31 March
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On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the first annual
report of the Group since the Listing for the year ended 31 March
2016.

The 2016 Financial Year is a landmark for Yee Hop. The Group
achieved a record breaking in both of the revenue and profits.
Leveraging on the years of achievement and the contributions of our
staff and supports of our customers, subcontractors and suppliers, we
successfully achieved the listing of the shares of the Company on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in December 2015, a
significant milestone of our Group. We have received 15.09 times of
the public offer shares at the offer price of HK$1.0. We have raised a
net proceed of HK$104.3 million from the Listing. The listing enhance
the Group’s corporate image and reputation and strengthens our
capital resources and shareholding structure.

RESULT SUMMARY

During the 2016 Financial Year, the Group recorded a consolidated
revenue of approximately HK$704.4 million, representing a significant
increase of 22.0% as compared to the last financial year. Gross Profit
of the Group also achieved an increase of 7.0% year-on-year to
HK$173.5 million. Profit attributable to equity shareholders amounted
to HK$94.3 million representing an increase of 9.6% as compared to
the last financial year. Earnings per share were HK$0.23 for the 2016
Financial Year.

OUTLOOK

The Group is facing both opportunities and challenges in the market
and current business climate in Hong Kong.

The Directors are confident to the long term outlook of the
construction industry development, in particular the growth driven
by the public sector works, such as the Public Housing Development
Program, the Ten Major Infrastructure Project and the recent
announced in the 2016-17 Budget by the Financial Secretary, a
ten-year hospital development plan and a ten-year public housing
supply target of 280,000 units. However, the Directors remain
vigilant mindful of the slow progress of the funding approval by the
Legislative Council for the planned infrastructural works.

In view of the above, the Directors are cautious on the using of
the net proceeds from the Listing to expand the capacity at the
moment and the net proceeds not yet utilized are now deposited
in the Group’s bank accounts in Hong Kong. We will monitor
the developments of the construction market closely and remain
conservative to preserve our capital resources to meet the challenges
ahead.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

We are confident that through our continued effort in cost savings
and efficiency improvements, the Group would successfully mitigate
the impact of those challenges.

Following our successful listing on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange in December 2015, we have established a strong capital
platform which will be conductive to taking our business to the next
level. Apart from the tunneling works, we shall explore other types
of construction works with the electricity supply companies. For the
foundation and other works, we shall build our client relationship
with one of the leading listed property developers in Hong Kong.

We are positive in the market outlook in the long term and our
outstanding capability and competitive edge will capitalize the growth
opportunities ahead.

APPRECIATION

I would like to this opportunity to express my heartfelt appreciation
to our staff of their dedication and passion for excellence in the past
years setting a strong foundation for the growth of the Group in the
future.

I would also like to thank the continuing support of our customers

subcontractors and suppliers and other business partners for the past
years

Jim Yin Kwan Jackin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2016
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is an established contractor in Hong Kong and is
principally engaged in the provision of foundation works (including
the construction of mini-piles, rock-socketed steel H-piles and driven
steel H piles, and other civil works, including site formation works,
and road and pavement works) and tunneling works (including pipe
jacking, hand dig tunnel and cut-and-cover tunnel works). The Group
usually engages its own team of technical staff and direct labour
to perform on-site works, together with a broad range of owned
machineries and equipment.

During the 2016 Financial Year, the Group achieved an increase
of approximately 22.0% in the Group’s revenue to approximately
HK$704.4 million (2015 Corresponding Year: HK$577.3 million).
Revenue for the foundation works and tunneling works for the 2016
Financial Year were approximately HK$414.7 million and HK$289.7
million (2015 Corresponding Year: HK$298.8 million and HK$278.6
million) respectively, representing an increase of 38.8% and 4.0%
respectively.

During the 2016 Financial Year, the Group has been awarded 10
contracts with original contract sums of approximately HK$490.3
million of which 9 contracts for the foundation works and 1 contract
for the tunneling works in the sum of approximately HK$430.5
million and HK$59.8 million respectively.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had a total of 19 major contracts
on hands with the outstanding contract value (based on the original
contract value) amounted to approximately HK$761.2 million to be
completed.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEE W&

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The business of the Group is focused in Hong Kong. It is expected
that the total gross output value of construction works performed
by main contractors and subcontractors at construction sites in
Hong Kong to grow significantly. The growth is expected to be
mainly driven by public sector works, such as the Public Housing
Development Program and the Ten Major Infrastructure Projects.

According to the 2016-2017 budget, the Hong Kong government
has adopted the public housing supply target of 280,000 units for
the ten-year period from 2016-17 to 2025-26 and will continue to
increase the supply of commercial floor area. In addition, the Hong
Kong Government has set aside a dedicated provision of HK$200
billion for a ten-year hospital development plan, which includes the
redevelopment and expansion of the existing hospitals and new
hospital projects in the Kai Tak Development Area.

However, the slow progress in the funding approval by the
Legislative Council has delayed the commencement of the planned
infrastructure works and slowed down the construction activities. The
recent unemployment rate of construction sector increased by 0.5
percentage points to 5.4 per cent. Accordingly, it increased the price
competitive in the tendering of new contracts.

Despite of the challenges ahead, the Group is conservative positive of
the prospects of the construction industry in Hong Kong. Leveraging
with the proceeds from the Listing, the experienced management
team and the good reputation of the Group in the construction
industry, the Group is confident to strengthen the market share in
Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DT

SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

The Directors believe that stringent quality assurance system and
strong commitment to works' quality, safety, occupational health and
environmental management are crucial in delivering quality works
to the customers on a timely basis. The Group has implemented a
stringent management system to regulate its works’ quality, safety
and environmental management standards, which complies with
international standards. The Group has achieved the requirements of
ISO 9001, ISO 14001, ISO 50001 and OHSAS 18001 accreditation for
our quality management system, environmental management system,
energy management system and occupational safety and health
management system respectively.

In the past years, the accident rate of the Group (on the basis of per
1,000 workers) at the construction sites was lower than the industry
average. For the calendar year 2015, the Group recorded the accident
rate of 1.7 per 1,000 workers and no fatal injury at the construction
sites of the Group.

The Group received the following awards from Government
departments, public utility companies and industry organizations on
recognizing our Group's effort on promoting and maintaining our site
safety:

e 217st Considerate Contractors Site Award Scheme Bronze
Award in the Non-Public Works — New Works category: from
Development Bureau and Construction Industry Council

e Merit in Non-Public Works Sites — New Works & RMAA Works
CCSA by 22nd Development Bureau Considerate Contractors
Site Award Scheme
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
e Chief Operating Officer Award: The Best Safety Performance by
CLP Power Hong Kong Limited

e Friends of EcoPark Certificate of Appreciation by The
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Environment Bureau

e  Certificate of Appreciation of Excellent safety Management by
Hong Kong Electric Co., Ltd. Safety Award 2015

e Certificate of Commendation by Hong Kong Electric Co., Ltd.
Safety Award 2015

e Bronze Prize in the Civil Engineering Sites — Sub contractors
category by Construction Industry Safety Award Scheme
2014/2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEE W&

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the 2016 Financial Year, the Group recorded a consolidated
revenue of approximately HK$704.4 million, representing a significant
increase of approximately 22.0% comparing with the approximately
HK$577.3 million for the 2015 Corresponding Year. The increase
in revenue was primarily due to the commencement of several new
foundation and civil work projects in the second half of the 2015
Corresponding Year which were in full swing during the 2016
Financial Year.

Revenue generated from tunneling works slightly increased from
approximately HK$278.6 million for the 2015 Corresponding Year
to approximately HK$289.7 million for the 2016 Financial Year
representing an increase of approximately 4.0%. Revenue generated
from foundation and other civil works increased from approximately
HK$298.8 million for the 2015 Corresponding Year to approximately
HK$414.7 million for the 2016 Financial Year, representing
an increase of approximately 38.8%. Several projects, such as
foundations works at Sheung Yuet Road and Nam Fung Path and the
tunneling works at Kai Tak have commenced in full swing during the
2016 Financial Year contributing a significant portion of the revenue
for the 2016 Financial Year.

The gross profit of the Group increased from approximately
HK$162.1 million for the 2015 Corresponding Year to approximately
HK$173.5 million for the 2016 Financial Year, representing an
increase of approximately 7.1%.

The overall gross profit margin slightly decreased from approximately
28.1% for the 2015 Corresponding Year to approximately 24.6% for
the 2016 Financial Year.

Gross profit in relation to tunneling works decreased by approximately
HK$20.4 million from approximately HK$74.9 million for the 2015
Corresponding Year to approximately HK$54.5 million for the 2016
Financial Year. The decrease in gross profit was mainly due to the
delay in the commencement of certain tunneling works. On the
other hand, for the 2015 Corresponding Year, the Group successfully
reduced the material cost in a tunneling project as a result of
acceptance and adoption by the ultimate customer of a cost saving
proposal which changed certain design parameters. As a result of the
combined effect of the above, the gross profit margin in relation to
the tunneling works segment decreased from approximately 26.9%
for the 2015 Corresponding Year to approximately 18.8% for the
2016 Financial Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEBEN W&

Gross profit in relation to foundation and other civil works increased
by approximately HK$32.0 million from approximately HK$86.4
million for 2015 Corresponding Year to approximately HK$118.4
million for the 2016 Financial Year. The increase in gross profit was
largely attributable to the substantial completion of several new
projects with relatively higher gross profit margin in our foundation
and other civil works segment for the 2016 Financial Year. The gross
profit margin in relation to the foundation and other civil works
segment was 28.6% for the 2016 Financial Year, in line with the
gross profit margin for the 2015 Corresponding Year of 28.9%.

Other income of the Group decreased from approximately HK$6.6
million for the 2015 Corresponding Year to approximately HK$3.4
million for the 2016 Financial Year, representing a decrease of
approximately 48.2%. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the
decrease in gain on disposal of our construction plant and machinery
by approximately HK$1.9 million and the government subsidy under
the ‘Ex-gratia Payment Scheme for Phasing Out Pre-Euro IV Diesel
Commercial Vehicles by approximately HK$0.8 million.

Administrative expenses increased from approximately HK$60.7
million for the 2015 Corresponding Year to approximately HK$62.2
million for the 2016 Financial Year, a slight increase of approximately
2.5%. Such increase was mainly attributable to the increase in staff
costs (including Directors’ emoluments). The listing expenses of
approximately HK$5.7 million were recorded in the profit and loss
account for the 2016 Financial Year, comparing with HK$7.6 million
for the 2015 Corresponding Year.

Total staff costs including Directors’ emoluments of the Group
increased to approximately HK$149.1 million for the 2016 Financial
Year compared to approximately HK124.7 million for the 2015
Corresponding Year due to the increase in salary for the office staff,
including Directors’ emoluments.

Finance cost of the Group for the 2016 Financial Year was
approximately HK$1.6 million, comparable with that for the 2015
Corresponding Year of approximately HK$1.8 million, a decrease
of 9.3%. Such decrease was due to the decrease in financial leases
charges.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEE W&

Income tax expenses decreased by approximately HK$0.8 million from
approximately HK$19.6 million for the 2015 Corresponding Year to
approximately HK$18.8 million for the 2016 Financial Year.

The consolidated profit and total comprehensive income of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$94.3 million for the 2016 Financial
Year as compared to approximately HK$86.6 million for the 2015
Corresponding Year, an increase of 8.8%.

Return on total assets for the 2016 Financial Year was 24.7%, which
is in line compared with that of 24.8% for the 2015 Corresponding
Year. Return on equity for the 2016 Financial Year was 42.0% as
compared to 62.0% for the 2015 Corresponding Year. The decrease
was due to the increase in shareholders’ equity as a result of the net
proceeds from the Listing in December 2015.

The Group incurred capital expenditure, primarily on plant
and equipment and motor vehicles, of HK$17.8 million (2015
Corresponding Year: HK$25.2 million for the 2016 Financial Year,
which was financed by internal resources and finance lease.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had bank balances and cash and
pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$132.6 million and
HK$2.0 million respectively (as at 31 March 2015: approximately
HK$126.4 million and HK$4.0 million respectively).

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had bank borrowings and
obligations under finance lease totaling approximately HK$29.3
million (as at 31 March 2015: approximately HK$35.0 million) out
of which approximately HK$16.4 million (as at 31 March 2015:
approximately HK$16.6 million) were repayable within one year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEE W&

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$174.0 million (as at 31 March 2015: approximately
HK$82.6 million).

The Group's current ratio (which is calculated on the basis of current
assets over current liabilities) as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March
2015 was approximately 2.3 times and 1.4 times respectively. The
gearing ratio (which is calculated on the basis of total debt over total
equity. Total debt includes bank borrowings and obligations under
finance leases) of the Group as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March
2015 was approximately 13.1% and 25.1% respectively.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has no capital commitments relating
to the purchase of machinery and equipment (as at 31 March 2015:
approximately HK$2.4 million).

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has pledged to banks and other
financial institutions plant and equipment, other receivable and bank
deposits of approximately in total HK$47.4 million (31 March 2015:
HK$60.0 million) to secure the banking and finance lease facilities
granted to the Group.

Save as disclosed, the Group did not hold any significant investments
during the 2016 Financial Year.

Details of segmental information are set out in the note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DT

Apart from the reorganisation pursuant to the Listing (the
“Reorganisation”), there were no material acquisition or disposal of
the Company’s subsidiaries and associates during the 2016 Financial
Year.

Details of the Reorganisation are set out in the section headed
“History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure — Reorganisation”
of the Prospectus.

The Group is not exposed to significant foreign exchange risk as the
business operations of the Group were transacted in Hong Kong
dollar. The revenue, expenses, monetary assets and liabilities of the
Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar (which is the
presentation currency of the financial information), same as the
functional currency of the Group.

For the 2016 Financial Year, there was no significant exposure to the
foreign currency rate fluctuations and the Group did not maintain any
hedging policy against foreign currency risk. The management will
consider hedging significant currency exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had provided guarantees of
approximately HK$69.6 million (31 March 2015: HK$51.1 million) in
respect of performance bonds in favour of its clients.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DT

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has 300 employees (as at 31
March 2015: 345). The remuneration package of the Group for
its employees includes salary, bonuses, other cash subsidies and
allowances. In general, employee salaries are determined based on
each employee’s qualifications, experience and capability and the
market remuneration rate. The Group has an annual review system
to assess the performance of our employees, which forms the
basis with respect to salary adjustments, bonuses and promotions.
Some in-house site staff were employed as daily workers and their
remuneration package includes salary and overtime allowances. The
employee remuneration expense and Directors’ emoluments (including
salaries, other benefits and retirement benefit costs) amounted
to approximately HK$149.1 million (2015 Corresponding Year:
HK$124.7 million) for the 2016 Financial Year.

DIVIDENDS
During the 2016 Financial Year, the Group had paid interim dividends
totaling HK$127.2 million (2015 Corresponding Year: HK$40 million).

The Board does not recommend a payment of final dividend to the
shareholders of the Company for the 2016 Financial Year (2015
Corresponding Year: Nil).

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 18 December 2015. The net proceeds from the Shares Offer
after deducting underwriting fees, commissions and other expenses
in connection with the Listing (the “Net Proceeds”) amounted to
approximately HK$104.3 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

USE OF PROCEEDS (Continued)

The Group intends to apply the Net Proceeds as set out in the section
headed “Future Plan and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. As at
31 March 2016, the Net Proceeds have been applied as follows:

Planned Use of Net Proceeds

SRS RIRFEAR

FREFRERZE®
REBERIBEBRERI AR EIRFTER
BERR | —SHEAMERIETFE - R
20163 A31H @ ATSFIEFREEBIENT
A%

Net
Proceeds Balance
utilized  unutilized

EEAMRSE

REFE KRDRAER
HK$"000 HK$°000 HK$°000

R IT TSR IT EEETIT

* to expand capacity on o AEEFTE M ERISE

foundation business and B8 N B B T S B

purchase new machineries and & » LARR Z AL & 00K

vehicles to improve operation MARTF T 1EfE

efficiency and enhance the

working capacity 60.2% 62,766 1,800 60,966
e to expand capacity on tunneling o F{E{E Folk s S5 E

business and purchase new BE M B BT - DA

machineries to enhance RATIERED

working capacity 29.1% 30,340 - 30,340
e to strengthen established o A{EEMERAE -

position in the industry by PAZEREAD &L

increasing the management AYHEAL

staff 8.0% 8,341 - 8,341
e general working capital of the o F{EREREH —HRL

Group BES 2.7% 2,815 - 2,815
Total 5T 100.0% 104,262 1,800 102,462

As at 31 March 2016 and up to the date of this report, the unutilized
Net Proceeds were deposited in the Group’s bank accounts in Hong
Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERBME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and senior management of the Company commit to
achieve a high standard of corporate governance, to formulate good
corporate governance practice for improvement of accountability and
transparency in operations, and to strengthen the internal control
and risk management systems from time to time so as to ensure to
protect the rights of the shareholders and enhance shareholder value.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with the code provision of the CG Code
from the date of the Listing (18 December 2015) to 31 March 2016
(the “CG Reporting Period”).

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 of the listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiries with
all Directors and all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the standards required by the Model Code during the CG Reporting
Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and in discharging its
corporate accountability. The Directors, individually and collectively,
must act in good faith in the best interests of the Company and the
Shareholders and fulfill his fiduciary duties by applying the required
level of skills, care and diligence to a standard in accordance with the
statutory requirements.

The Board is responsible for formulating group policies and business
directions, and monitoring internal controls and performances.

As at 31 March 2016, the Board comprises seven members including
four Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The current Board members are:
Name Present position

Mr. JIM Yin Kwan Jackin
Mr. CHUI Mo Ming Vice Chairman

Mr. YAN Chi Tat Chief Executive Officer

Mr. LEUNG Hung Kwong Derrick Executive Director

Mr. LEE Luk Shiu Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. YU Hon Kwan Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. WONG Chi Keung Johnny  Independent Non-executive Director

Chairman of the Board
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The composition of the Board has a balance and diverse skill,
experience and professional knowledge in construction business, as
well as finance, accounting and legal expertise appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Group.

The biographies details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report. There is no family relationship among the Directors.

As permitted under the Articles, the Company has arranged Directors
and Officers Liability Insurance in respect of any legal actions which
may be taken against Directors and management in execution and
discharge of their duties or in relation thereto.

During the CG Reporting Period, the Board at all times met the
requirement of Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-
Executive Directors representing one-third of the Board.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Board is headed by the Chairman Mr. Jim Yin Kwan Jackin, with
the assistance of the Vice Chairman, Mr. Chui Mo Ming. The roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Yan Chi Tat are
segregated and not exercised by the same individual.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership and effective running
of the Board and ensuring that all material issues are discussed by
the Board in a timely and constructive manner. The Chief Executive
Officer is responsible for the management of the Group’s business
and the implementation of the approved strategies of the Group. In
addition, each Executive Director is responsible for the management
of the different functions of the business of the Group.

With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures all
the Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings
and be provided with adequate information in a timely manner.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee for overseeing specific
aspects of the Company’s affair under its defined scope of duties
and term of reference. The terms of reference of each of the Board
Committees are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. Details of difference committees are discussed
below.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 25 November 2015 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code, which will
come into effect upon the Listing. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are, among other things, to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and internal control and risk management
systems of the Group.
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As at 31 March 2016, the Audit Committee consists of three
members who are the Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu, Mr. Yu Hon Kwan and Mr. Wong Chi Keung
Johnny. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Lee Luk Shiu.

During the CG Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had convened
one meeting, of which all the members of the Audit Committee have
attended, and performed the following work:

1. to review the unaudited financial statements of the Group for
the six months ended 30 September 2015 and its related interim
results announcement;

2. to review the changes in accounting standards and assessed
their potential impacts on the Group’s financial statements; and

3. to review the result of the work performed by the auditors of
the Company based on the agreed-upon procedures on the
interim results announcement.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 25 November 2015
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code,
which came into effect upon the Listing. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are, among other things, to review and to
determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to the Directors and senior management.

As at 31 March 2016, the Remuneration Committee consists of
four members, namely Mr. Yu Hon Kwan, Mr. Jim Yin Kwan Jackin,
Mr. Wong Chi Keung Johnny and Mr. Lee Luk Shiu. The chairman
of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Yu Hon Kwan. During the
CG Reporting Period, no meeting of Remuneration Committee was
convened.

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing
from the date of the Listing, unless terminated by the respective
Director or the Company in accordance with the terms of the service
agreement. Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, the
INEDs should be appointed for a specific term. Each of the INEDs has
entered into a service agreement with the Company under which
each of them is appointed for a period of one year commencing from
the date of the Listing, subject to early termination in accordance
with the terms of the services agreement.

Details of the remuneration paid to Directors and the five highest
paid employees are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

M2016F3A31H  BEZZEETH-_FZNXE
(BB IEMITES)MEK - DRI AZHEIK
S REMEAENTEMAL - K
EERBHREESER °

REFEERREHE  EREEGEEIT
—ReH(ERERZEENEHELE)
WHEITAT I

1. EFAEBEEHZ2015F9A30H I
& B MR E B X HmR R EEEF
HAREE NS

2. EHSEINEHLAHEHAE
B BREBEZE Rk

3. EHAARRZRHBMREREREFY
PHIRENEEITHITIEER -

FHEES
AARIEARER2015F11 A25H BB E
ERERENIUTMNEE S WVERVESE
ARESEUTERN EMBESNCES
JASTRl - HMEZEEENEERE A (EHTE
BEMLETENESRSREEENS
B8~ TEAT R EADIREN A ISR

M2016F3A310 - HFEEZESHUEKE
HR - DRIBFRIRMACE  ERELL
TEBEERTHREIGE - RIZEWELER
THEECER - REEEARREHH -
TNEE G ERITER -

BEPTESEEARARIZLREHE - 8
R BEMER  VZEEFHR=F K
FEREERARBREBERG A GFKT
PARRIE - RIBEEERTRIE ST ANEEH
AANIE - BIFTE R RN E L HE
RIE - BBWUFATESEARAR LR
B - Bt - 28 LT B HMER R H
—FRERAE - RIFRBIRIS 92 (FFIR A
ARIE

YR FEER OGRS MES B
BH RS MISmARMITE13%14 ©



Corporate Governance Report
TRERRE

Details of remuneration of the members of senior management by
band for the 2016 Financial Year are set out below:

Up to HK$500,000
HK$500,000 to HK$ 1,000,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 25 November 2015 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code, which came
into effect upon the Listing. The primary function of the Nomination
Committee is to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and the management of
the Board succession.

As at 31 March 2016, the Nomination Committee consists of four
members, namely Mr. Yu Hon Kwan, Mr. Jim Yin Kwan Jackin, Mr.
Wong Chi Keung Johnny and Mr. Lee Luk Shiu. The chairman of
the Nomination Committee is Mr. Yu Hon Kwan. During the CG
Reporting Period, no meeting of the Nomination Committee was
convened.

The Board recognises the benefits of diversity of the Board members.
The Board will consider a number of factors in assessing the
composition of the Board, including but not limited to educational
background, professional qualifications, skill, industry experience, age,
gender and ethnic origin, subject to the requirement of the Group
and relevant provisions of the applicable laws. No restrictions, like
age, gender, and ethnic origin, will be set for the selection of Board
members. The Company will ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
needs of the business of the Group.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company generally convenes four regular Board meetings per
year or more meetings when necessary. During the CG Reporting
Period, one regular Board meeting was convened, of which all the
members of the Board had attended:

1. reviewed and approved the unaudited financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 30 September 2015 and its
related interim results announcement and interim report;

2. reviewed and approved the operational and financial results of
the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are encouraged to keep abreast of their responsibilities as
a Director and of the conduct, business activities and development of
the Company. The Company from time to time updates the Directors
on the latest regulatory and governance developments.

Prior to the Listing, all Directors had attended the training provided
by the legal advisor of the Company in relation to the directors’
obligations and responsibilities, Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Listing Rules.

Directors are encouraged to participate in professional development
courses and seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills relating to the roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed
company.

All the Directors have confirmed they had participated in continuous
professional developments during the CG Reporting Period as
required under the CG Code.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDITING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in preparing the Group's
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give
a true and fair view of the Group's state of affairs, results and cash
flows and in accordance with the relevant accounting standards and
principles and the disclosure requirements under applicable laws and
regulations in Hong Kong.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2016, the generally accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong,
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting
Standards are adopted, with consistent use of appropriate accounting
policies, for making reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates.
The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 were
prepared on a going concern basis. The reporting responsibilities of
the auditors are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report in this
annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control and risk management systems and for reviewing
their effectiveness, particularly in respect of controls on financial,
operational, compliance and risk management, to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.
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The internal control and risk management systems are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance. The systems aim
to eliminate, or otherwise manage, risks of failure in achieving the
Company's objectives.

The Company does not establish an internal audit function. The
Group has engaged consultants to review various aspects of the
internal control and risk management systems of the Group.

The Group has implemented the management and quality assurance
standards in accordance with the standards of International
Organisation for Standardization in respect of ISO 9001 (quality
management systems), 1SO 14001 (environmental management
system) and I1SO 50001 (energy management system). In addition,
the Group has implemented the occupational health and safety
management system in accordance with the requirements of OHSAS
18001 of Occupational Health and Safety Assessment Specification.
The Group has met the requirements of the annual review conducted
by the external consultants.

The Group has engaged the Registered Safety Auditor to conduct
independent safety and health audit in relation to the effectiveness,
efficiency and reliability of safety and health management systems
in accordance with the requirements under the Code of Practice on
Safety Management for various construction sites during the 2016
Financial Year. Improvements had been implemented according to
the recommendations.

In relation to the Listing, the Group has engaged external internal
control consultant to conduct reviews of the internal control
systems of the Group. The Board, through the Audit Committee,
has reviewed the result of the work of the external internal control
consultant in relation to the effectiveness of the internal control and
risk management systems of the Group, including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function. The Audit Committee
oversees the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group and communicates any material issues to the Board.

Based on the result of the reviews as mentioned above, it is
considered that proper internal control and risk management systems
are in place and implemented effectively.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

In order to avoid any future competition between the Group and the
Controlling Shareholders, each of the Controlling Shareholders has
executed the deed of non-competition dated 25 November 2015
(the “Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour of the Company.
Pursuant to the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition, each of the
Controlling Shareholders has undertaken, among others, in favour of
the Company that he/it will not and will procure his/its close associates
not to engage in any business which may be in competition with the
business carried on by the Group from time to time.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable to SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited in
respect of the audit services and non-audit services for the year ended
31 March 2016 are as follows:

Nature of Services

33 ¥v7 F7)
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HE1A2015511 B25H BT 5 %%}*‘(FT
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ERIRE D AR T A (HTeE) fBZ
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(EE;0

M EET &

HZE201643A31H ILFERBZREMIE
ERRBENKEME KR R(EE) g5
MEFAAR QRN T

Fee paid/payables

PR B BB
HK$’'000
BT T
Audit services EZRY
— consolidated financial statements of — REER2016FHREEH
the Group for the 2016 Financial Year FE M BEmE 600
Non-audit services B IR
— Acting as reporting accountant relating to — B bR ERRE A
the Listing 530
— Review services —EHR% 166

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wu Tai Cheung, the Company Secretary of the Company, is
the primary contact person of the Board for all matters relating to
corporate governance and board procedures. All Directors have
access to the Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures
and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. During
the CG Reporting Period, he had taken relevant professional trainings
as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The details of the
biographical of the Company Secretary are set out on page 30 of this
annual report.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Group also recognizes the importance of transparency
and timely disclosure of corporate information, which enables
shareholders and investors to make appropriate investment decisions.

The members of the Board and Board committees and the external
auditor will be present to answer shareholders’ questions in the
annual general meetings of the Company. Circulars will be distributed
to all shareholders before the AGM and any extraordinary general
meetings in accordance with the timeline requirement as laid down in
the Listing Rules and the Articles of the Company. All the resolutions
proposed to be approved at the general meetings will be taken
by poll and poll voting results will be published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company after the relevant general
meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website where information on the Company’s
announcements, financial information and other information are
posted. Shareholders and investors may write directly to the Company
at its principal place of business in Hong Kong with any enquiries.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles 64 of the Articles of the Company,
an extraordinary general meeting can be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date
of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth (10%) of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting
at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company for
the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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There are no provisions in the Articles of the Company or the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish
to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a
general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in
the preceding paragraph.

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns together
with their names and contact information to the Board by
addressing them to the head office in Hong Kong at Units
1104-1106, Nan Fung Commercial Center, 19 Lam Lok Street,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong by post or email to
info@yee-hop.com.hk for the attention of the Chairman of the
Board. The Board will reply the enquiries and concerns as soon as
possible.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company adopted an amended and restated memorandum
and articles of association of the Company (the “Constitutional
Documents”) on 25 November 2015 and effective upon the Listing.
A copy of the Company’s updated Constitutional Documents is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Jim Yin Kwan Jackin (&##¥), aged 54, an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Board, a member of both the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Jim
is one of the founders of the Group. He is also a director of all the
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Jim has over 30 years of experience in the engineering and
construction industry. Mr. Jim is responsible for formulating corporate
strategies and planning the business development of the Group.
Mr. Jim graduated from the University of Reading with a Bachelor’s
degree of Science in Quantity Surveying and holds a Master’s degree
of Business Administration in Management from the Brighton
University.

Mr. Chui Mo Ming (% BF), aged 63, an Executive Director and the
vice-chairman of the Board. Mr. Chui is one of the founders of the
Group. He is also a director of all the subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Chui has over 44 years of experience in the engineering and
construction industry. Mr. Chui is responsible for the formulating the
corporate strategies of the Group. Mr. Chui has been a construction
supervisor member of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction
Managers since August 2003.

Mr. Yan Chi Tat (Ei73£), aged 49, an Executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group. Mr. Yan joined the Group in
October 2010. He is also the director of Yee Hop Engineering.

Mr. Yan has over 24 years of experience in the engineering and
construction industry. Mr. Yan is responsible for formulating
corporate and business strategies and operations of the Group. Mr.
Yan graduated from the South Bank University with a Bachelor’s
degree of Science in Quantity Surveying. He is an associate of The
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and a professional associate of
The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors. He has been a Registered
Professional Surveyor since July 2004.

Mr. Leung Hung Kwong Derrick (2# ), aged 47, an Executive
Director. Mr. Leung joined the Group in August 2008. He is also the
director of Yee Hop Engineering.

Mr. Leung has been the Technical Director of Yee Hop Engineering
for its registration as a Registered General Building Contractor and
Registered Specialist Contractor in foundation works category with
the Buildings Department since 2008 and 2011 respectively. He has
over 24 years of experience in the engineering and construction
industry. Mr. Leung is responsible for formulating the corporate
business strategies. Mr. Leung graduated from the National Taiwan
University with a Bachelor’'s degree of Science in Engineering.
He holds a Master’s degree of Philosophy in Civil & Structural
Engineering from the Hong Kong University of Science & Technology.
He is currently a Registered Professional Engineer (Geotechnical,
Structural). He is a member of the Institution of Structural Engineers
and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu (Z#&JK), aged 58, an Independent Non-executive
Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company.

Mr. Lee has over 27 years of experience in commercial accounting
and corporate finance. Mr. Lee is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He graduated from the
Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan
University) with a Diploma in Business Administration. Mr. Lee has
worked in the Stock Exchange for around 15 years where his duties
included regulating and monitoring the Hong Kong listed companies
in relation to their compliance with the Listing Rules and processing
new listing applications. His last position with the Stock Exchange
was an Assistant Vice President of the Listing Division. Mr. Lee was
also a senior consultant of an investment bank for 5 years. He is an
Independent Non-executive Director of Huabao International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 336) and Hin Sang Group (International) Holding
Co. Ltd (stock code: 6893), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yu Hon Kwan (&;ZE#), aged 53, an Independent Non-
executive Director, Chairman of both the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
of the Company.

Mr. Yu has over 30 years of experience in the construction industry.
Mr. Yu graduated from the University of Reading with a Bachelor’s
degree of Science in Quantity Surveying. He is a Member of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Mr. Yu is the General Manager
(Community Relations) of Henderson Land Development Company
Limited. Mr. Yu was a lecturer (non-clinical) in the Department of Real
Estate and Construction of the University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Yu is a Justice of the Peace of Hong Kong. He has dedicated
a significant proportion of his time in community service. Mr. Yu
is currently a member of the Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings), the
Vice Chairman of the Islands District Council, and the Chairperson
of the Civil Engineering and Development Department — District
Participation Group for the Greening Master Plan for Islands District.
He was awarded a Medal of Honour in July 2015 in recognition of his
long and dedicated public and community service.

Mr. Yu is a director of the Business Environment Council from April
2016 (formerly also a director of the same Board from June 2011
to February 2015). He was also a director of the Hong Kong Green
Building Council from January 2014 to February 2015.
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Mr. Wong Chi Keung Johnny (E£7&), aged 57, an Independent
Non-executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company.

Mr. Wong graduated from the University of London with a Bachelor’s
degree of Laws with Honours and holds a Master’s degree of Laws
from the University of London. He is a solicitor of the High Court of
Hong Kong, a solicitor of the Supreme Court of England & Wales
and a barrister and solicitor of the Supreme Court of the Australia
Capital Territory, Australia. He is currently a partner of Messrs. Lo,
Wong & Tsui, Solicitors, handling general and commercial litigations,
conveyancing works, land acquisition and land exchange, real estate
development and financing.

Mr. Wong has served as a member of the Provisional Regional
Council from 1998 to 1999, a member of the Tai Po District Council
from 1999 to 2003, a member of the Liquor Licensing Board
from January 2000 to January 2004, and a member of the Appeal
Tribunal Panel under the Buildings Ordinance from December 2000
to December 2004. He obtained the HKSAR Medal of Honour
in October 2002. Mr. Wong was also an appointed member of
the Yuen Long District Council from January 2008 to December
2011. He was an Independent Non-executive Director of SkyOcean
International Holdings Limited (formerly known as Allied Overseas
Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 593)
for the period from June 1993 to August 1997.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan King Yip (BRa%3£), aged 42, Project Director of the Group.
Mr. Chan joined the Group in April 2006. Mr. Chan has over 17 years
of experience in handling engineering and construction projects. Mr.
Chan is responsible for the overall project management. Mr. Chan
graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree
of Science.
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Mr. Wu Tai Cheung (# X %), aged 58, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Wu joined the Group in
October 2014. Mr. Wu has over 16 years of experience in accounting
and corporate finance.

Mr. Wu graduated from the University of Bolton (formerly known as
the Bolton Institute of Higher Education) with a Bachelor’s degree
of Arts in Accountancy and holds a Master’s degree of Business
Administration from the University of Newcastle, Australia. He is
currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, an associate of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong,
a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, an
associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and an
associate of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.

Mr. Wu is currently the joint company secretary of Shenyang Public
Utility Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 747), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chui Heung Wing (#[@%%), aged 57, Contracts Manager of the
Group. Mr. Chui Heung Wing joined the Group in September 1997.

He is currently the Authorised Signatory of Yee Hop Engineering
under its registration as a Registered General Building Contractor
and Registered Specialist Contractor in foundation works category
with the Buildings Department. He has over 35 years of experience
in the construction industry. Mr. Chui Heung Wing holds a Diploma
in Structural Engineering and a Higher Certificate in Structural
Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly
known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic) and a Bachelor’s degree of
Civil Engineering from the Washington InterContinental University.
In December 2015, Mr. Chui Heung Wing obtained the Master of
Science in Civil Engineering and Construction Management from the
Heriot-Watt University. He currently is a chartered building engineer
of the Chartered Association of Building Engineers. He is a member
of the Chartered Association of Building Engineers, a member of
the Australian Institute of Building, a chartered environmentalist
of the Society for the Environment and a corporate member of the
Society of Environmental Engineers. He has also obtained the 1SO
14001:2004 Environmental Management System Internal Auditor
Training at the Hong Kong Certification Services Ltd from September
to December 2005. He has completed the Lead Assessor course of
Quality Assurance from BSI Quality Assurance in June 1993 and a
visiting lecturer of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Institute for
Enterprise in July 2003.
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Ms. Wong Lok Man Vicko (Ei&#), aged 35, Environmental
and Safety Manager of the Group. Ms. Wong joined the Group in
November 2007.

Ms. Wong has over 12 years of experience in industrial safety
industry. Ms. Wong holds a Diploma in Occupational Health & Safety
from the Open University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor’s degree of
Science in Environmental and Occupational Safety & Health from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a registered safety officer
under the Factories and Industrial Undertakings (Safety Officers and
Safety Supervisors) Regulations and a safety auditor. She is currently a
member of chartered building engineer of the Chartered Association
of Building Engineer and a full member of the International Institute
of Risk and Safety Management.

Ms. Wong has also obtained other relevant certificates such as
the Occupational Health and Safety Council Certificate for Safety
& Health Supervisor (Construction) in July 2002, the Certificate
of Occupational Safety and Health Trainer in February 2004, the
Occupational Health and Safety Council Combined Certificate for
Safety, Health & Environmental Supervisor (Construction) in June
2005, the Certificate of Site Audit Inspection Standards (Safety &
Roadwork Obligations) Course — Highways Department in 2010, the
Certificate of Occupational Health and Safety Council Fire Prevention
(Construction Industry) in March 2010, the Certificate of Supervision
of Tree Works Course in June 2011, the Certificate of Continuing
Professional Development for ISO 14001:2004 Environmental
Management System Introduction and Internal Auditing in October
2012, the Certificate of Competence in Display Screen Equipment
Assessment — Occupational Safety & Health Council in November
2013 and the Certificate of Attendance of BEAM Plus — Roles and
Responsibilities of Contractors in October 2013.

Ms. Wong has also attended the following courses: Work Supervisor
Safety Training Course (Marine Construction) in May 2008, Managing
Noise at Work in May 2010, Construction Industry Safety Climate
Index Survey Workshop in June 2010, Safety and Health Regulations
for Working on Construction Site and New Development in March
2010, Occupational Health and Safety Council Legionnaires’ Disease
and its Prevention in January 2010, and the Safety Auditor Training
Scheme in 2014.

Mr. Wu Tai Cheung (#§ X%f), the Company Secretary of the
Company. Details of his biography are set out in the paragraph
headed “Senior management” in this section. Mr. Wu was appointed
as the Company Secretary in June 2015.
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Report of Directors

EEEHE

The Board is pleased to present their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
principally engaged in the construction industry in Hong Kong
focusing on the provision of foundation and other civil works
and tunneling works. The principal activities of subsidiaries of
the Company are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements. There has been no significant changes in the principal
business of the Group in the 2016 Financial Year.

REORGANISATION AND SHARE OFFER

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 12 February 2015.

Pursuant to a reorganization to rationalize the structure of the Group
in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, the Company became the holding
company of the companies now comprising the Group on 14 August
2015.

The Shares have been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 18 December 2015.

RESULTS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the 2016 Financial Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 48 in this annual report.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the 2016 Financial Year are set out in consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDENDS
During the 2016 Financial Year, the Group has paid interim dividends
totaling HK$127.2 million (2015 Corresponding Year: HK$40 million).

The Directors do not recommend payment of any final dividend for
the financial year ended 31 March 2016 (2015 Corresponding Year:
Nil).
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PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY'’S SHARE
OFFER

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 18 December 2015. The net proceeds from the Shares Offer
after deducting underwriting fees, commissions and other expenses
in connection with the Listing (the “Net Proceeds”) amounted to
approximately HK$104.3 million.

The Group intends to apply the Net Proceeds as set out in the section
headed “Future Plan and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. As at
31 March 2016, the Net Proceeds have been applied as follows:

e to expand capacity on o FEEFRMEEEER
foundation business and K2 b B R e S
purchase new machineries and ~ MAMEAZ SRR MR+
vehicles to improve operation T1ERE

efficiency and enhance the
working capacity
e to expand capacity on tunneling o FR{EIEFEBXE /S ERE

REXRAARDBENRERER

AT A2015512 B 18 B EEBES AT iRk -
e BMBRBHEE  HAekBELETHE
A BRGOBEEMEREFE( RS
RIEFE O ABE104388TL °

REEBRIBABRER KRR EIRFTER
HR® ] —SMEEAMGRIEFEE - »
201693 A318 + FISFIEFEE AEUT
B

60.2% 62,766 1,800 60,966

business and purchase new MEEE TR - DART

machineries to enhance working T {E&E

capacity 29.1% 30,340 - 30,340
e to strengthen established o FAEEIMEIEAE @ LA

position in the industry by ZRERNEANDEIHM

increasing the management i

staff 8.0% 8,341 - 8,341
e general working capital of the o FR{EAREE K —HRLIE

Group B 2.7% 2,815 - 2,815
Total Bt 100.0% 104,262 1,800 102,462

As at 31 March 2016 and up to the date of this report, the unutilized
Net Proceeds were deposited in the Group’s bank accounts in Hong
Kong.

MR2016F3A31BREEAREHE - HE
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group for the 2016 Financial Year is
set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 7 to 17 of this annual report.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are detailed in
the section headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.

In addition, various financial risks have been disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

The likely development of the Group is disclosed in the paragraph
headed “Business Outlook” in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report.

The relevant financial key performance indicators relating to the
business of the Group are set out in the “Business Review"” and
“Financial Review"” section in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” and the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

No important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the
end of the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

Environment protection is critical to the long term development of the
Group. The Group places importance in the management practice so
as to prevent pollution, reduce waste and enhance waste recycling.
The Group has adopted environmental management practice
in accordance to ISO14001: 2004 (Environmental management
system) and 1SO50001: 2011 (Energy management system). The
Group promotes environment-friendly construction worksites and
implements appropriate facilities to improve the environments of the
construction worksites.

R G
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The Group maintained a good relationship with its employees and
had not experienced any significant disruptions to the operation due
to labour dispute. The Group committed to providing a safe and
healthy workplace for the staff and have arranged an annual safety
conference for staff of all levels to enhance their knowledge on site
safety.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and
suppliers. The Group maintains close contact with the customers and
has conducted regular reviews of the requirements of the customers
and complaints. The Group will conduct appraisal of the performance
of suppliers on regular basis.

The Group recognizes the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and risks of non-compliance with such requirements.
The Group has on-going review of the new enacted laws and
regulations which may affect the operations of the Group. During the
2016 Financial Year, there is no incidence of non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact on the
business of the Group.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last four financial years is set out on page 126.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the 2016 Financial
Year amounted to HK$1.1 million (2015 Corresponding Year:
HK$0.05 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the 2016 Financial Year are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
2016 Financial Year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction
in which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the period from the date of Listing to 31 March 2016, neither
the Company nor its subsidiary purchased, redeemed or sold any of
the listed securities of the Company.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2016, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law amounted to approximately HK$121.8 million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the 2016 Financial Year, the Group's five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 85.0% (2015 Corresponding
Year: 98.6%) of the total revenue of the Group and the largest
customer included therein accounted for approximately 46.2% (2015
Corresponding Year: 52.0%).

For the 2016 Financial Year, the Group’s five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 49.7% (2015 Corresponding
Year: 55.9%) of the total costs of construction materials and
accessories of the Group and the largest supplier included therein
accounted for approximately 21.1% (2015 Corresponding Year:
35.0%).

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their associates or any shareholders of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors of the Company own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the five
largest suppliers or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the 2016 Financial Year and up
to the date of this report are:

Mr. JIM Yin Kwan Jackin
(appointed on 12 February 2015)
Mr. CHUI Mo Ming
(appointed on 12 February 2015)
Mr. YAN Chi Tat
(appointed on 12 February 2015)
Mr. LEUNG Hung Kwong Derrick
(appointed on 12 February 2015)

Mr. LEE Luk Shiu

(appointed on 25 November 2015)
Mr. YU Hon Kwan

(appointed on 25 November 2015)
Mr. WONG Chi Keung Johnny

(appointed on 25 November 2015)
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Pursuant to the Articles, Mr. CHUI Mo Ming, Mr. YAN Chi Tat and
Mr. LEUNG Hung Kwong Derrick will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

BIOGRAPHIES DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 27 to 29 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing
from the date of Listing.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into a
service agreement with the Company under which each of them is
appointed for a period of one year commencing from the date of the
Listing.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the transactions in connection with the Reorganisation in
preparation for the Listing as disclosed in the Prospectus and save
for disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements
and contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company’s subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent
companies was a party and in which a Director or controlling
shareholders of the Company and the Director’s connected party had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the 2016 Financial Year.

REMUNERATION FOR DIRECTORS

In compliance with the CG Code, the Company has established
the Remuneration Committee to formulate remuneration policies.
Directors’ remuneration are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to Directors’ duties and responsibilities,
the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and the
performance and results of the Group. Details of the remuneration of
the Company’s Directors are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of the controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company has executed a Deed of Non-competition dated
25 November 2015 in favour of the Company, which contains
certain non-competition undertakings given in favour of the Group.
Particulars of the Deed of Non-competition are set out in the section
headed “Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders” in the
Prospectus.

The controlling shareholders have provided a confirmation to the
Company confirming of their compliance with the Deed of Non-
competition during the 2016 Financial Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group under the applicable accounting standards during the 2016
Financial Year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Save as those transaction set out in this paragraph headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions”, none of the related party
transactions disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements constituted disclosable non-exempted connected
transactions or non-exempted continuing connected transactions of
the Group upon the Listing under the Listing Rules. To the extent of
the related party transactions constituted connected transactions as
defined in the Listing Rules, the Company had complied with relevant
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the 2016 Financial Year, the Group has entered the following
transactions with connected persons which constituted continuing
connected transactions upon the Listing pursuant to the Listing Rules:

The Group through its subsidiary (as tenant) entered into a lease
agreement (the “Lease Agreement”) with Pioneer National
Development Limited (as landlord) (“Pioneer National”) dated
25 July 2015 to lease the premises at Units 1104-1107, Nan Fung
Commercial Centre, 19 Lam Lok Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon,
Hong Kong (the “Office Premises”) for office use for a term of
three years commencing from 25 July 2015 at a monthly rental of
HK$82,000 (exclusive of rates, government rent and management
fee payable by the tenant).

Pioneer National is owned as to 50% by Mr. Jim and 50% by Mr.
Chui, both are Executive Directors and Controlling Shareholders of
the Company. Pursuant to the Listing Rules, Pioneer National is a
connected persons and transactions contemplated under the Lease
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions since the
Listing.

As the relevant applicable percentage ratios with respect to the
transactions contemplated under the Lease Agreement on an annual
basis are less than 5% and the annual consideration is less than
HK$3 million, the Lease Agreement constitute exempt continuing
connected transactions under Listing Rule 14A.76(1) and is exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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The Group through its subsidiaries entered into a master agreement
dated 25 November 2015 with Chun Wai Cranes Limited (“CW
Cranes”) in relation to the lease and mobilization of certain
machineries, including crawler cranes (the “Master Agreement”)
for the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016. A separate rental
contract in respect of each lease and mobilization of a machinery will
be entered into to specify the details of each lease and mobilization
arrangement which include but not limited to the fee and payment
terms. The rental and mobilization fee shall be agreed by the parties
at arm'’s length basis on normal commercial terms, which shall not be
less favourable than the terms that could be obtained by the Group
from an Independent Third Party.

CW Cranes is beneficially owned by Mr. Pang Chun Yu Wesley, who
is the son of Mr. Pang Wai. Mr. Pang was a shareholder and director
of Y.H. Foundations within the last 12 months from the date of the
Listing. Pursuant to the Listing Rules, CW Cranes is a connected
person since the date of the Listing and will be ceased to be a
connected person of the Company with effect from 11 May 2016.

For the 2016 Financial Year, the transactions contemplated under
the Master Agreement amounted to approximately HK$7.0 million,
within the annual cap of HK$8.9 million.

The Directors, including the INEDs, have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions contemplated under the Master Agreement
and confirmed that the aforesaid continuing connected transactions
have been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available from
Independent Third Parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement, and are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board has engaged
the auditor of the Company to carry out certain procedures on
the above non-exempted continuing connected transactions in
accordance with the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditors has issued an unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
non-exempted continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has
been provided to the Stock Exchange by the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive Officer in the shares or underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

(a) Long position in Shares

Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest
EEgE B REEtE
Mr. Jim Interest in a controlled corporation
EhA (Note 1)

Ryt EEER (A1)
Mr. Chui Interest in a controlled corporation
(6 (Note 2)

Rt AE S iE2)

(b) Long position in YH Assets, an associated
corporation of our Company

Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest
EEHA B, HEmttl
Mr. Jim Beneficial owner (Note 1)
ErxE BB ANHZET)
Mr. Chui Beneficial owner (Note 2)
wEE EnlEa AH72)

Notes:

1. YH Assets is beneficially owned as to 51% by JJ1318 which is in turn
100% beneficially owned by Mr. Jim. Accordingly, Mr. Jim is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by YH Assets under the SFO.
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2. YH Assets is beneficially owned as to 49% by MM1318 which is in turn
100% beneficially owned by Mr. Chui. Accordingly, Mr. Chui is deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by YH Assets under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Chief Executives of the
Company and/or any of their respective associates had any interests
or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of part XV of the SFO) as at 31 March 2016 as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2016, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors and Chief Executives
of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be notified
to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or

which were recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.

Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the
Company:

Name Capacity/nature of interest
mE/EB B4 REtE

YH Assets (Note)
YH Assets(#7:%)

Beneficial owner

BESEAA

1J1318 (Note) Interest in a controlled corporation

W1318(f1:%) SYEHLEE R
MM1318 (Note) Interest in a controlled corporation
MM1318(47:£) B AERER

Note: YH Assets is beneficially owned as to 51% by JJ1318 and 49% by MM1318.
Accordingly, each of JJ1318 and MM1318 is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by YH Assets under the SFO.

2. YH Assets EHEMM 1318 F 2= # 5 49% Ry i %5
MMM1318BI TR A B 5B 2 2FHE -
It RIBEESRBEED - GEEREAER
YH Assetst B B (5 B e o

Br A FTIREEE SN - 201693 A31H i
BANRES TETBRABR HES
B AW E A TR ARG EE T8
BEEE (EE RES REEEAIEXVE) /Y
FRRD - AHERDRESHT - BEER
GERIRIEES R EEEHIZE 3521638 F 8T
EMERMASBREEETRZITAEA
DR BRI R SA R o

FERRRAQAFREEEEE
R - HERDRESTHER

R#A

M2016%F3H318 F BESA - THA
T(EENRARAREEZTHABRIN AR
NAMR G ARG - BEEEIREE
HREAEEMEXVEIE2 37 HAMEARRD
A AR TFRIRIEE S LB KAIZE336
BFEmELMmEsdors -

RAXFRGREBRROHEFE

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

interests of

Number of Shares our Company

RRFRE

R E BEHSNEIL
375,000,000 75%
375,000,000 75%
375,000,000 75%

Bfat © YH AssetsF))1318 RMM1318 7 B B A
51% }49% ° At - 1318 xMM1318& &
RIRFEF R AT E GAIEIR BRYH Assetsit A
BIRR A R A fe s o
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Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
persons who have interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the registered required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed, at no time during the 2016 Financial Year was the
Company, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognize and acknowledge the contributions that
Eligible Participants (as defined below) have made or may make to
the Group so as to motivate the Eligible Participants to optimize their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group, and attract,
retain or otherwise maintain ongoing business relationship with the
Eligible Participants whose contributions are, will or expected to be
beneficial to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of ten years commencing on 25 November 2015, after which no
further options will be issued. The total number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other schemes shall not in aggregate
exceed 50,000,000 Shares (10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of Listing), unless approved by the shareholders in general meeting
(the maximum number of Shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue from time to time). No
option may be granted to any Eligible Participant which, if exercised
in full, would result in the total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options already granted or to be granted
to such Eligible Participant under the Share Option Scheme (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options) in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant exceeding 1% in
aggregate of the Shares in issue as at the date of such grant. The
offer of a grant of share options shall be accepted when the offer
letter has been duly signed and a consideration of HK$1 in total has
been paid by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the Directors and ends on a date which is
not later than ten years from the date of the offer of share options.

B EXPIREES  EFEMAANBEME
M ALTRAR BN D RBBERD T - %
BRIERE S R MEGRIIEXVERE2 %37 &
ARARAEE  HALFRBREESFK
HEFRPIE3B6IFFENECMAEEIR
2o

EEREROIEZNER

B EXPTIREESN - NAF] - HiERAF
s ELAE I Y B X Bl KR R B A AR 2016
FHBEENEMRGRARET LEML
B AEARRESAIEBEBEARARRN
A A B BRI ) S IE 77 A 2 -

BrEsE

AR B —ERG BMH B RASE
REHAEHSEE(ERR T DA
AT A R BRI P B BT ALSL + AU
AEBSEERREEOFEMELRLER
BRME - RIR3| - BT R
SEE RN  HeRERYAEES
Mea B2 EENBEEBHE -

AR EET 21 B 2015 11 A25 BBt T4
NERRER  BBRTEE—PBITER
T o BRIEM AR RS HE - TRIRAT
BIREERER B s T H b8 H A
ERERETERI TRITHRORE - T
S 18#850,000,000 8% f% 17 (7 £ B BAE %
1IR3 10% ) (T B IR IR BB AR AT 8l I A
NEME (T H AR AT B B R MR TTE
MARITE AR TER S MR EE
R NEBIBARRNRFEITR DB E
M30%) - 2 TEBERESBHRES
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Eligible Participants include: (i) any Eligible Employees. “Eligible
Employees” means any employee (whether full time or part time,
including any Executive Director but excluding any Non-executive
Director) of the Company, any subsidiary or any entity in which the
Group holds at least 20% of its issued share capital (“Invested
Entity”); (ii) any Non-executive Director (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) of the Company, any subsidiary or any
Invested Entity (iii) any supplier of goods or services of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity (iv) any customer of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity; (v) any person or entity that
provides research, development or other technological support to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (vi) any shareholder of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
(vii) any advisor (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area
of business or business development of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; and (viii) any other group or classes of participants
who have contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the development
and growth of the Group, and, for the purposes of the Share Option
Scheme, options may be granted to any company wholly owned by
one or more Eligible Participants.

The exercise price of options shares shall not be less than the highest
of: (i) the closing price of the Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant option,
which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities (a “Trading Day”); (i) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheets for the five Trading Days immediately preceding
the offer date of the relevant option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share on the offer date.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the
Prospectus.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant
options to Directors and employees of the Group and other eligible
participants to subscribe for Shares not exceeding 10% of the Shares
in issue, 50,000,000 Shares.

No option has been granted under the Share Option Scheme and
no option was exercised during 2016 Financial Year. There was no
option under the Share Option Scheme outstanding as of 31 March
2016.

BEREERRE  VEINEEREE -6
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BR) i (iAKETMNKE AR ST
EEEMTMEmRIRBEER  (VAK
EEMKREARIREMRAEENIMNE
F i WAAREETMKE ARSI MKEEER
BIREHMRE - FEIE MR SIRA T
ATHREEE : (VASEEAKE ARKE
AR EBEAT AR KA RE TR E
DA SRAT A A B8 P 3T RO AT R 55 A0
EAFAA 5 (ViDAEETAKE AR KT
ARABBNEAXHRENRGERD
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SUFFICIENT OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules
since the Listing.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the “Corporate Governance Report” section in the annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016.

AUDITORS
A resolution will be proposed in the AGM to re-appoint SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. JIM Yin Kwan Jackin
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 June 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZBENHRE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF YEE HOP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yee
Hop Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out
on pages 48 to 125, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

HRAERBRAAIMIRR
(REIEHEFMA A BRAA])

B BB 125EFEEAENE
RAR([ERR ) RENBARMEES
Wik - EBEMN2016%E3 A31 ARiEA
BHRRE  UAREBEZBLFENGREIE
mEHEMEEEEER  KEAEZEHRK
GABReRER  ERIBCIHREME
MEMEREER -

ESRGREMBRRABRNER

BERREZRERBEEGIMASHEM
BB B 7 s S AR B R B A AR DI e B
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at 31 March 2016, and of their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Wai Hang

Practising Certificate Number: P05044

Hong Kong
24 June 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HRBaRAM2ERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 E%E2016F3A31HILFE

For the year ended
31 March 2016

BE201653A31HLLFE
2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kz BT T EEETFIT
Revenue Wz 8 704,393 577,333
Cost of services A% AR (530,887) (415,259)
Gross profit Syl 173,506 162,074
Other income EAalgA 9 3,413 6,594
Administrative expenses TR (62,247) (60,700)
Finance costs BB 10 (1,603) (1,767)
Profit before taxation FREL BT F 113,069 106,201
z3 Income tax expense FTiSRiF S 11 (18,803) (19,555)
5%
g z Profit and total comprehensive FREMNEEE RS ERE 12
R income for the year 94,266 86,646
i% Profit (loss) and total comprehensive LA &5 B 7 (E518)
B2 income (expense) attributable to: pEILeGE Y
5] azE
i’ Owners of the Company AANREBA 94,294 86,001
= Non-controlling interests IR R (28) 645
G
- 94,266 86,646
HK$ HK$
Earnings per share BREF]

Basic and diluted HEANEE 16 0.23 0.24




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 March 2016 201653 H31H

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETIT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BERRE 17 69,983 81,460
Debentures &5 18 1,460 1,460
71,443 82,920
Current assets REEE
Trade and retention receivables 2 5 s K EWRE & 19 154,998 121,259
Amounts due from customers N EFEHTIZFHE 20
for contract work 11,829 5,542
Deposits, prepayments and %~ BN FEREMmEYGR 21
other receivables i) 9,388 9,008
Pledged bank deposits BERFITER 22 2,032 4,026 Z%
Bank balances and cash RITERKIRE 22 132,554 126,375 ;C”—Ug
EE
310,801 266,210 52
Current liabilities nREARE 2 %
Trade and retention payables EIENTBERENRES 23 45,216 36,842 #%
Amounts due to customers for ENEFAHTIENA 20 =
contract work 61,396 96,990 %
Accruals and other payables [ET B R AR IE 24 11,601 19,511 =
Bank borrowings RITEE 25 - 683 Al
Obligations under finance leases MEMEEER 26
- due within one year ——FREIH 16,353 15,964 -
Tax payable JERETISHY 2,189 13,627
136,755 183,617
Net current assets RBEEFE 174,046 82,593
Total assets less current liabilities BERBERDEE 245,489 165,513
Non-current liabilities FEnFaE
Obligations under finance leases MEREER 26
- due after one year ——E % 5E 12,974 18,396
Long service payment obligations RERG S RIE 27 544 544
Deferred tax liabilities FEILFIIBEE 28 7,669 6,928
21,187 25,868

Net assets BERE 224,302 139,645




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE IR R

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kz BET T BT
Capital and reserves EANSEE

Share capital AR 29 5,000 14,800
Reserves b 219,302 124,001

Equity attributable to owners of ARAER AEE#ER
the Company 224,302 138,801
Non-controlling interests IR - 844
Total equity BB 224,302 139,645

The consolidated financial statements on pages 48 to 125 were FABE 125 BT E M BEWMERTAESEEN

> < approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 201646 A24 B L& RRRETIEE - Wik T3
g% June 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: ATREESZ
55
8
Fa
%5
5]
&
g
"
2
&l
- Jim Yin Kwan, Jackin Chui Mo Ming
Jf-3:c: #EH
Director Director

5= =



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AEBBHE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 E%E2016F3A31HILFE

2015, the authorised share capital of the subsidiary was USD50,000 divided
into 50,000 ordinary shares of USD1 each, of which 1,000 subscription

shares were allotted and issued at par for the initial working capital.

FaMAIE - WBA Tm/iiﬂ%
72%50,0009
H i 1,0000%72

50,000%7T * 5
B -

ERECBENSEERS -

Non-
Share Share  Merger Other  Retained controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve profits Total interests Total
B RGBE AiRE HtEE REER @ FERER i
HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BETr A¥Tr B¥Tz BMTr B¥Tr BT A%Trx
/Noz‘e a)  (Noteb)
Yita)  (Wiitb)
At 1 April 2014 B2014F4R 1R 12,602 - - 219 77,692 90,513 286 90,799
Issue of new shares (Note ) B&{T#TRR 1D (Hitc) 2,200 - - - - 2,200 - 2,200
Dividends recognised as BREDRRE

distribution (Note 15) (Hit15) - - - - (40,0000 (40,000 - (40,000
Profit and total comprehensive R FI R 2 E

income for the year lheayta - - - - 8,001 86,001 645 86,646
Further acquisition of equity ~ [AFEEIRERE—#

interest in a subsidiary WEENBRR

from non-controlling e iz

interests (Note 39) - - - 87 - 87 87) -
Reorganisation B4 2 - - 2 - - - -
At 31 March 2015 and R201563H318 R

1 April 2015 201584710 14,800 - - 308 123,693 138,801 844 139,645
Issue of share capital (Note ) E7TRRA(fital) 8 - - - - 8 - 8
Reorganisation (Note 29(c)  E#4(H#29¢)) (14,808) - 14,808 - - - - -
Issue of new shares in SARARR L

connection with the BRI

listing of shares of the (Hi#29@)

Company (Note 29(d)) 1,250 123,750 - - - 125,000 - 125,000
Share issue expenses BIROHT - (7417) - - - (7.417) - (7.417)
Capitalisation issue of BEAETRG

shares (Note 29(e)) (Hi29e) 3750 (3750) - - - - - -
Dividends recognised as BREN RS

distribution (Note 15) (Hiit15) - - - - (127,000 (127,200 - (127,200
Profit (loss) and total EREFN(ER) R2E

comprehensive income s (Fx) g

(expense) for the year - - - - 94,294 94,294 (28) 94,266
Acquisition of equity interest  m3ERIVERE—F

in a subsidiary from WEEHB AT

non-controlling interests WA ES (H7:t39)

(Note 39) - - - 816 - 816 (816) -
At 31 March 2016 12016F3A318 5000 112,583 14,808 1,124 90,787 224,302 - 224302

Note a: Merger reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the Hiita - &OHREERRESESHKRENNIE QR
issued capital of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation EEITRALEEEARKBZIHNEBR
over the consideration paid for acquiring these subsidiaries. AR NREMEEE -

Note b: Other reserve represents the carrying value of the additional equity interests Matb - EAb A RN EE 20159 % 201643 A 31
of the subsidiary held by the non-controlling shareholders and acquired HIEF/E R IFEIRAR R 556 LA & A& # B
by Mr. Jim Yin Kwan Jackin and Mr. Chui Mo Ming at considerations of S MAREBA 5L A4 5 Bl LA (B % 700,000
HK$700,000 and HK$116 respectively during the years ended 31 March TLRPSHE 6 TT R RO A RV EE I MR AE
2015 and 2016 respectively. FRREE °

Note c: During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Yee Hop Engineering HMiitc - REZE201563A31BIEFE - ARRFEIR
allotted and issued to a total of 1,467,400,000 shares of the entity at BEER2015F AR ARNK S5 88 R
HK$2,200,001 to the shareholders who elected to receive shares in the IR T BE AR D LA 2014 F R EA R 20154F
entity in lieu of cash for the 2014 final and 2015 interim dividends pursuant PHRERE MBS TIREANZFRES
to the scrip dividend scheme announced by the entity in 2015. These shares HELE [ 3171,467,400,0000% B BEAR 19 (&
rank pari passu in all respects with other shares in issue. #2,200,0017T) ° R EMRH R E 5 ERE

fth BB AT () =B R S A o
Note d- Upon incorporation of Yee Hop Investments Limited (“YH Investments”) in HtaEd - Eé%é&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ((%/\&ﬁj)Ezms
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 E%E2016F3A31HILFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
Profit before taxation BRA AT i )
Adjustments for: RUATEBELFE
Bank interest income HRITHRLEHA
Reversal of provision for long RERG D

service payment

Finance costs BB A
Write off of a trade receivable W35 E 5 Uk R TE

Gain on disposal of property, HEME - ek

plant and equipment B
Loss on written off of property, MEEEE - WS K

plant and equipment KB EsIE
Government subsidy BT
Depreciation of property, plant ME - HES N

and equipment RiBITE

Operating cash flows before LEESEHAR

movements in working capital KEReRE

B 5 MG IR K R R Bl &

(Increase) decrease in trade and

retention receivables (3 h)m
(Increase) decrease in amounts EWEFA#AIIRNIAE

due from customers for contract (e hn)mE

work

we  ANFER
Ho it FEUR R IRIE b

Increase in deposits, prepayments
and other receivables

Increase (decrease) in trade and B HEMNFE K
retention payables FERRESEMORL)

(Decrease) increase in amounts ENEFA#HIIERE
due to customers for contract G298 il
work

(Decrease) increase in accruals and FEETE A M AR I8
other payables Rk )30

Cash generated from operations KEEBATSIAS

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREBNED

NET CASH FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

REEFHHRERE TR

113,069

(418)
1,603
54

(162)

(752)

29,318

142,712

(33,793)

(6,287)
(380)

8,374

(35,594)
(7,910)
67,122

(29,500)

37,622

106,201
(870)

(242)
1,767

(2,093)

549
(1,511)

27,731

131,532

15,533

818
(2,805)

(338)

10,454
8,514
163,708
(4,807)

158,901



INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and

equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Interest received
Government subsidy

Withdrawal (placement) of pledged

bank deposits

Repayment from shareholders
Repayment from a director

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING

ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of shares
Proceed from finance leaseback

arrangement

Repayment of bank borrowings

Interest paid
Share issue expenses

Repayment of obligations under

finance leases
Dividend paid

Repayment to shareholders

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE END OF THE YEAR, represented
by bank balances and cash

REEH
BEWE - Bk
i
ﬁE%% s K

RIBFTISEUR

EHHE

BT BN

RE (750 BB
RITHER

B EIER
—REFEN

REFHFMARE TR

BEEE
BTN TS RUE
BhEME LY AR
IRITIEEER
EAFLE

BHEITHS
BEMEHESHT

ENEE
AR A& R

BMEZHATARE TR

RERRESEYIEMFR

FONRERREEEY

FRNWAERREEEY
(URITHEBRAERTR)

(7,315)
162
418
752

1,994

(3,989)

125,008

2,955
(683)
(1,603)
(7.417)

(18,514)
(127,200)

(27,454)

6,179

126,375

132,554

(12,413)

3,135
870
1,511

(2,007)
800
288

(7,816)

2,200

(1,617)
(1,767)

(22,109)
(40,000)
(11,698)

(74,991)

76,094

50,281

126,375
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 E%E2016F3A31HILFE

GENERAL

Yee Hop Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
as an exempted company with limited liability incorporated in
the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law, Chapter 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands on 12 February 2015 and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 18 December 2015.
Its parent and ultimate parent is Yee Hop Assets Limited (“YH
Assets”), incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Its ultimate
controlling parties are Mr. Jim Yin Kwan, Jackin and Mr. Chui
Mo Ming (the “Controlling Shareholders”). The address of the
registered office of the Company is PO Box 1350 Clifton House,
75 Fort Street, George Town, Cayman Islands, and its principal
place of business is located at Room 1104-06, 11/F., Nan Fung
Commercial Centre, 19 Lam Lok Street, Kowloon Bay, Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company while the
principal subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
foundation and other civil works and tunneling works in Hong
Kong.

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong are Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"). For
the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “Group”) adopted HK$ as its presentation currency
which is the same as the functional currency of the Group.

—RER

HEEERAERRAG(ARRAE])RHR2015
F2RANBRBEHREFEENE2E
NEVE(1961 FE 31 - &iRE RE
DRSS EMAT - MERD
201512 B18AEE BB AR ST
BRAR LT - AR AR REEER
RIAREBE XA S MAI ) Yee
Hop Assets Limited (['YH Assets ) o &
SERER T RERBRERFREAL
(TR ]) - AR B ME
B& b3k A PO Box 1350 Clifton House,
75 Fort Street, George Town, Cayman
Islands + MH F 2 & EMBUNEF B
NEEEERLEE 105 M E R EP L1112
1104-06% °

ARRB—RREZEBR AR MER
MEAREENE B ERMHEIAN
REMTARTIERBEETRE

ARAREREBZMAIZAM B A
ANIhaE R R ([B%K]) - 2
JIF A HERME - AR A REM
BRA (AT AEEDRAAE
BHEEEREBIERERZHRER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Pursuant to the reorganisation as detailed in the section
headed “History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure” to
the prospectus of the Company dated 8 December 2015 (the
“Reorganisation”), the Company became the holding company
of the companies now comprising the Group on 14 August
2015. The Company and its subsidiaries have been under the
control and beneficially owned by the Controlling Shareholders,
since their respective dates of incorporation or establishment up
to 14 August 2015. The Group comprising the Company and
its subsidiaries resulting from the Reorganisation is regarded
as a continuing entity. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements of the Group has been prepared on the basis as if
the Company had always been the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group since the beginning of
the reporting period, using the principles of merger accounting as
set out in note 4 below.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows including the
financial performance and cash flows of the companies now
comprising the Group for the years ended 31 March 2015 and
2016 have been prepared as if the current group structure had
been in existence since 1 April 2014. The consolidated statement
of financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2015 has been
prepared to present the assets and liabilities of the Group as if
the current group structure has been in existence as at 31 March
2015.

mEE A
BEXRRFBHAE2015F12 488K
BRERFRIESE - EHKARZERE]
—HFFlmER(EALD - AAaER
2015F8 A 148K &I A AN B
LA RIMIERAR] o AR A REM
BAraE S B MMk B
BRI ZE 201598 A14H IF—E XK
TR kAR EEEES - AEAR
MEBAARRE REMB AR FTAKHAR
EEWRAIFEER - it - A%E
R E SRR B EBUOAR R B ®R
EHE—EAERNEXNAEESME
RNAEIRIERR A B R B ZE - BT
FARTEMEHERARE -

HE2015F N2016F3 8318 ILFE
MizcEEkEMAEAKER K4
EREHRREEFESTRER(BIER
BEKAEBEZEA NP ERIAR
ReREB)ETHE  HUBRESEZRE
ME2014F4 1 BRELTFE - A5
B R20159F3 831 HHGA BBk
RETHE  UZINAEENEER
BE - BURREEREENR2015F3
A31HE&FE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRS(s)"”)

The Group has consistently adopted the HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs”), amendments and
interpretations (“Ints”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") which are effective
for the Group'’s financial year beginning on 1 April 2015.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

FE A #T 5] R QIR & B I %

HEA([BBMBEREE
Al )
AEBECERKRASBY B RS
A BEGHEA([EBEGTE
) - BEGEAS([EEg:T6
nE ) EHRRBET RER(TZRE]) -
WHRAEB H20154 81 HFHHBEES
R -

REBRHARFERBUTERMER
REMHFR] RGBT B B HRE
R

BB RS ER Bo% SRTE
(2014)

BANEREERE 155 RERFANKE

BB REER 2165 Giil=g

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?
HKFRS 16 Leases*
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014
Cycle!
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative’
Amendments to HKAS 16 and Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation’
Amendments to HKAS 16 and Agriculture: Bearer Plants'
HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Statements'
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture3

RABMBREERNET BAIHREER
MEEME (2012
FEZ)014EEE)
RASHENEIRMET  REHE
BESHENZE 165N BETRIHNER
BEENERTNET  BEpE

BEQIENE 16 R
BB HERENSIEE]

R EENEY

BEGERERNET  BUMBERRY
A
BEMBRSEARI0RR  RAEEAMEAA
BEQRAESRNET  BEEIANEAE
HEHBELES
BEMBRSEAEI0R . RARR: ERGA
BEMBREEAERR  ARAOASMER

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception!
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations'
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarification to HKFRS 152

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
3 Effective date not yet been determined.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as
described below, the application of other new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

BB EHERIE28RNET]
EERBREEAENE WA ELDERN

o]EH) SHREE

RAEMBREERE 5% BERAMEREE

EoleH] BIJ% 15552

L 2016551 18 sz & FaEFE HifE
e

2 2018F 1 A1 Bl .2 B FIARFE B
AR

3 HAREE KA -
¢ R2019F 1 A1 RS2 R R FEHIRE
R e

ARABEETRY - BRATAAES
FERE AT MERT BB B ]S
R & B AR B B 48 M SR
NERERTE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended to bring
into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that will
allow entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in the financial statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in 2014 to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS 9
that were issued in previous years with limited amendments
to the classification and measurement by introducing a “fair
value through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI")
measurement category for certain financial assets. The finalised
version of HKFRS 9 also introduces an “expected credit loss”
model for impairment assessments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

3.

FERFT REETEBYIE
MEEA([FBUBREE
EUNDIE )

EBRI TS HR & B R E 97 (20145 )
FA2009F MM BB M EERIE
IS EEHEREENBRFTEN
HRE - BEMHRELENEIRR
2010 R HIER] » MEHERAE
DRI EARKIEERNBE - 1
20134 BEM B REERNFINAF
E—HER]  WEBHHENED
HERT - EMASEEBRNPBRERS
FRREARERES - BEMBR
HAERIZE IR MY R AX R AR 2014 F 48
o AT EREESIANZATE
FEARMEEWE | (MEAFERT AR
2 EdE ) ERR - ARAB
EFEMBEHEBU RS ERFE I
MERHRE  AHBAENBREERE
HARER] - A RELERF IR
MR AR A TR LR ERH A SI AT TR E
EERIRA -

BAEMSIRE LR F 95 (20145 ) 1y
FERTEHMMOT ¢

o MBEBEBGAELEIN M
TA: ERRGEREANDE
RE A EEL B BIRE KA
HAFHEAE - BBME 5k
WHA DR REMEBEAR
BENEBILE  RANEESR
EERAEELASRHNAEELRS
FEMEBHRE  —MREES
FTEARIAS E B IRE ER ART & -
EERREESGORERERD
ELREENEBEXNTHEFD
BEHETE  UREMEENEYD
MIERBE RS EHREENR
EREBLERAINFARE RHKRE
EASHAEMNERTE &R
FEFAEMEEW SR G
2 TAEEMEBSIRE Mg
EHREERERRIEATER
2o N RIBBBMIERELE
BIZE95R (20144 ) » EEEM{EH
Tl HEARE - LR EMEE
W 25 E (W IERHEE
EEH)AFEMNEEEE  m—
BAREREWARIBISER
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H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. EAHIIREKEITEBUTK

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS EXRA([EEBMKHLE
("HKFRS(s)") (Continued) EUNDIE )

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued) B EIREERFIY (20144 )
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With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 (2014) requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the financial
liabilities" credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability designated
as fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit
or loss.

In the aspect of impairment assessments, the impairment
requirements relating to the accounting for an entity’s
expected credit losses on its financial assets and
commitments to extend credit were added. Those
requirements eliminate the threshold that was in HKAS 39
for the recognition of credit losses. Under the impairment
approach in HKFRS 9 (2014) it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised. Instead, expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses should always be accounted
for. The amount of expected credit losses is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition and, consequently, more timely
information is provided about expected credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

. HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which is more
closely aligns hedge accounting with risk management
activities undertaken by companies when hedging their
financial and non-financial risk exposures. As a principle-
based approach, HKFRS 9 (2014) looks at whether a risk
component can be identified and measured and does not
distinguish between financial items and non-financial items.
The new model also enables an entity to use information
produced internally for risk management purposes as a
basis for hedge accounting. Under HKAS 39, it is necessary
to exhibit eligibility and compliance with the requirements
in HKAS 39 using metrics that are designed solely for
accounting purposes. The new model also includes
eligibility criteria but these are based on an economic
assessment of the strength of the hedging relationship.
This can be determined using risk management data. This
should reduce the costs of implementation compared with
those for HKAS 39 hedge accounting because it reduces
the amount of analysis that is required to be undertaken
only for accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application
permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 (2014) in the future may have significant impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group's financial assets and
financial liabilities. Regarding the Group's financial assets, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect
until a detailed review has been completed.

3.

FERET REETEBUHK
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BB BEIREERFIY (20144 )

(#&

o EHEUBMEERNZFEINR(2014
F)SAFER - AT RFEY
FHESmEIESBREAKREEZ
EH A B TEI TR AR EEIEE
AR NG - BAEMIERELE
BIIZE 95K (2014F ) 1E A — TR AR
BlAEMNA L ZERRERD
WK ZE A HERNTE
B NED €8 E MIESRE
B o ¥EX I B A A
EEMERETRERERIEAY
SRERTRELE o IRIEH B G E
BIZE39%% - AN BFRERES
TEMERRRREHNESS
FHERIE3RBENAKMER
GHME - EXNBEERIEE
% B EEERE R PR
CREEITHE TS - AT R A
RREEHIEETE - HENES
ST ERIFE 3N Y e A
B S REAREEITRAS 0 B
EREELASHRIEBEETH

DITE -

EAPBEIRELREINR(20145F) 1
R2018%F1 A1HEk 2 &R FEH
R4 - BRlERiER -

KNAGEEEY  BREAEBHE
WRAEER|F IR (20144 ) Al AL AR E
BemEERCRBEMZHRNSE
BRERTE - A AEE S H
BEME  REKFAZSHIEZY
N ARG AT o

-+ 91/5107 Hoday [enuuy

-
b=rl
DI SR ERFIp i PavWI sBuipjoH doH 994



- 91/910Z Hoday [enuuy
DETAF I PoUWIT sBuipjoH doH 994

I el

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. Thus, HKFRS 15 introduces a model that applies to
contracts with customers, featuring a contract-based five-step
analysis of transactions to determine whether, how much and
when revenue is recognised. The five steps are as follows:

i) Identify the contract with the customer,;
i) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
i)  Determine the transaction price;

iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and

v)  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the
financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts
with customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on
the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group's
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until
the Group performs a detailed review.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and their treatment in the financial
statements of both lessors and lessees. In respect of the lessee
accounting, the standard introduces a single lessee accounting
model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for all
leases with the lease term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset has a low value.

At the commencement date of the lease, the lessee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset at cost, which consists of
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability,
plus any lease payments made to the lessor at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, the
initial estimate of restoration costs and any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee. A lease liability is initially recognised at
the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
Lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payment made, and
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or
lease moadifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments. Depreciation and impairment expenses, if any, on the
right-of-use asset will be charged to profit or loss following the
requirements of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, while
interest accrual on lease liability will be charged to profit or loss.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating
leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease standards including
HKAS 17 Leases and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will be effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019 with early application permitted provided
that the entity has applied HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers at or before the date of initial application of
HKFRS 16. The directors of the Company are in the process of
assessing their impact on the consolidated financial statements
of these requirements. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect until the Group performs a
detailed review.

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle include
a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are
summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify that changing from
one of the disposal methods (i.e. disposal through sale or
disposal through distribution to owners) to the other should
not be considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it is
a continuation of the original plan. There is therefore no
interruption of the application of the requirements in HKFRS 5.
Besides, the amendments also clarify that changing the disposal
method does not change the date of classification.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 clarify that a servicing contract
that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a
financial asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee and
arrangement against the guidance for continuing involvement
in HKFRS 7 in order to assess whether the additional disclosures
for any continuing involvement in a transferred asset that
is derecognised in its entirety are required. Besides, the
amendments to HKFRS 7 also clarify that disclosures in relation
to offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities are not
required in the condensed interim financial report, unless the
disclosures provide a significant update to the information
reported in the most recent annual report.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

3.

FERET REETEBUHK
WmEE([EBYB®REE
8 1) o)

BB EERE165EHE ()
BB ISR EERNE 16515 142019F
1TR1BR 2 AR FEE R AR
BiWEEREEAEEMIEREE
BIZ165: H sk 2RI EA BB 5
WELERENSHEKFEFLES M
Bl A FFIRATER - AR R ESIEFE
ZERTHRAVBRERNTE - R
M RALEEETHFAEHARTE
EH ARG ATFT o

BB IR EER R E RN # (2012
FEF2014FFH])

BBV B E LR FEE (2012
FE2014FBH) BIEYZEEEH
B EERERREET - BEIERTH
BIRATX »

BEMBRELNESRNERTES
—RHETX(ERHEMLEIE
B THEEANE)BBRKS BT
e m— B ER BN - M
ERAEINTE - Bt - ERERY
BRELERE SRR EL RA L It
S AERT TR EEIR R T AL

BOFEAL -

BRI REERIETROETTEEN
SERANRBENBREE2 RS
BE - BERARBTBMBHREER
FTRNFESEESIFHEARR
BERIEE - AR RS AN A2 A
2ERILERNEEEEFD MR
R o UbHh - BIBM B IMEEAF 7R
{ERT IREE)R f PR vh A B 75 S 5 3 AR
ERBBREEREELRSRABBOR
B BRBRERSOINEHRMEE
BREENER



APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the market depth of
high quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency
in which the obligation is denominated, rather than the country
where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market
for high quality corporate bonds in that currency, government
bond rates must be used.

HKAS 34 requires entities to disclose information in the notes
to the interim financial statements ‘if not disclosed elsewhere
in the interim financial report’. The amendments to HKAS 34
clarify that the required interim disclosures must either be in the
interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference
between the interim financial statements and wherever they are
included within the greater interim financial report. The other
information within the interim financial report must be available
to users on the same terms as the interim financial statements
and at the same time. If users do not have access to the other
information in this manner, then the interim financial report is
incomplete.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments included in the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle will have a material
effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of revenue-based
depreciation methods for property, plant and equipment under
HKAS 16. The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable
presumption that the use of revenue-based amortisation
methods for intangible assets is inappropriate. This presumption
can be rebutted only in the following limited circumstances:

i) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue;

i) when a high correlation between revenue and the
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
assets could be demonstrated.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

3.

FERET REETEBUHK
WmEE([EBYB®REE
8 1) o)

BB IR EER B E RN # (2012
FEZ2014F4H) (&)

BB ERE19MNETEEaE
BERREFNTMSREARESE
B mIERESTERREE TG -
Wz EENESEEaAREETERE
W5 - RIAEFERABRFEERE -

BEGFHEREIMRREE RN H
AT TR I P B FR A R i 2 S 7 o
MBmEEMEIFRRTRE] - &
B e ERIEARMIERTEB R EN
hHRBEAN T R BRRP LK
R B iR 2 BEE2REAA
BEAERD P BEHRE - B
s o E iy B R R IR S b BB 5
ROBERGRERBRKBREERFPE
B o AP RBERULET AEHEM
B AR RERIET TR -

AAREREY  ERAEEVHHRE
SR EE D (20125 22014438
MBI B T e HAEBNGE MG
MRBREATE -

BBEELEI165EREBSER
EISTEHINEET BB A IEZ R TER
HE
EAGHERF165MIETZIEHRD
¥ BMEDIEERURSERTES
%o BAGFERFE38FRMIEETEIA
—IBA FTLUHBNESR  BRERE
EERREEARBIEEBRE - It
SRERTHMEERERLT AT
LAER)

) EEVEEITAKEE

AR Uk S AT B E A
FOUFESBAER -

-+ 91/5107 Hoday [enuuy

-
b=rl
DI SR ERFIp i PavWI sBuipjoH doH 994



- 91/910Z Hoday [enuuy

D) DIEIS I pauwW sbuipjoH doH 99A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will become
effective for financial statements with annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments should be applied prospectively.

As the Group uses straight-line method for depreciation of
property, plant and equipment and amortisation of intangible
assets, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

The amendments to HKAS 27 allow an entity to apply the equity
method to account for its investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates in its separate financial statements. As a
result of the amendments, the entity can choose to account for
these investments either:

i)  atcost;

i) in accordance with HKFRS 9 (or HKAS 39); or

i) using the equity method as described in HKAS 28.

The amendments to HKAS 27 will become effective for financial
statements with annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments should
be applied retrospectively.

As the Company does not have any investment in associates or
joint ventures, the directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments to HKAS 27 will have a
material impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments clarify that companies should use professional
judgement in determining what information as well as where
and in what order information is presented in the financial
statements. Specifically, an entity should decide, taking into
consideration all relevant facts and circumstances, how it
aggregates information in the financial statements, which
include the notes. An entity does not require to provide a
specific disclosure required by a HKFRS if the information
resulting from that disclosure is not material. This is the case
even if the HKFRS contain a list of specific requirements or
describe them as minimum requirements.

Besides, the amendments provide some additional requirements
for presenting additional line items, headings and subtotals
when their presentation is relevant to an understanding
of the entity’s financial position and financial performance
respectively. Entities, in which they have investments in
associates or joint ventures, are required to present the share
of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity method, separated into the share
of items that (i) will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss; and (i) will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify that:

(i) an entity should consider the effect on the
understandability and comparability of its financial
statements when determining the order of the notes; and

(i) significant accounting policies are not required to be
disclosed in one note, but instead can be included with
related information in other notes.

The amendments will become effective for financial statements
with annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
Earlier application is permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of Amendments to HKAS 1 in the future may have a material
impact on the disclosures made in the Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Details of fair value measurement are explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). If a subsidiary prepares its
financial statements using accounting policies other than
those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that subsidiary’s financial statements
in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure
conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s
returns.

The Company reassess whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of these elements of control stated above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control of the subsidiary and cease when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises
the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
at their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost,
(i) derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interests in the former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost (including any components of other comprehensive income
attributable to them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest, with any resulting difference being
recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the
Group. When assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are carried
at revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets and liabilities (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as specified by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

The consolidated financial statements incorporates the financial
statements items of the combining entities or businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining entities
or businesses first came under the control of the Controlling
Shareholders.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the Controlling
Shareholders’ perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of
goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination, to the
extent of the continuation of the Controlling Shareholders’
interest.

BERETBE @)

FEERBEEHE 2 eI B R
ZE(E)

fidf AN &% [ 5k 5 — [T P JB8 % A1) A 2 15
- EeRNKEEIRZ BRILE
RMBAREE(RREAEE) RE
BERRREE (MR REZBIEZ AR
IFFER RPN B A RHEM FEER = (B
R E R R E M 2 Y e (AT AR
BB ) BRTEME ¢ K (i) FERR P AR (B
RPERTARBEED A FENE
Mo AR EE R Z BN B E
RAAEE R RS HEE o HWHHE
REEERAERERSRALFE
SRR - MARRE RETREEIRERNHE
fi 2 U s TR S M es R At - RIIR
SR EM 2 E K R LN Rt
M EEEENAREC EZ L ERE
BERBBARCGIRBERNEEN
BREENEHN D BEBaERE
EREAN) o FIERRUEARE R
BERKREZFEEANQFE - RIE
TEEERESR @ T A - #iF
LA EGENSERENAFE - A
HEERSFTRIE - (@R RIF
R ERRHALEERERRE
XA o

RAEMBHRREEAFRZEHEHNE
HEEBXEBOPBEREREAL - B0
BREFAHERIEH BRI ERK

REGIEHEE A

BHERBARTMNEEFERERK
RRRNRAREERS - EEBRR
REFEHREESORIET - RERE
& OF By X 2 A B B S B T R
BoRIATHEAEE ARELIRERE
B A FEFERE = AN B BF 20 FE
REMEER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFHR®)

(Continued)

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date presented
or since the date when the combining entities or businesses first
came under the common control, where this is a shorter period,
regardless of the date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses had
been combined at the end of the previous reporting period
unless the combining entities or businesses first came under
common control at a later date.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for services rendered in the normal course
of business and net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue recognition for construction contracts in relation to
building construction, upgrade services of the infrastructure
and foundation works included in the segment of alteration,
renovation, upgrading and fitting out works is set out in the
section headed “Construction contracts” below.

Rental income from operating lease is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income from financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Where the outcome of a construction contract including
construction or upgrade services of the infrastructure under
a service concession arrangement can be estimated reliably,
revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting
period, measured based on the proportion that contract
costs incurred for work performed to date relative to the
estimated total contract costs, except where this would not be
representative of the stage of completion. Variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent
that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is
considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent
of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which
they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is
shown as amounts due from customers for contract work.
For contracts where progress billings exceed contract costs
incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is shown as amounts due to customers for contract
work. Amounts received before the related work is performed
are included in the consolidated statement of financial position
as a liability, as advances received. Amounts billed for work
performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under trade and
other receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statements of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case
they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general
policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in
which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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(Continued)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as a
deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful
lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme™) are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the
related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of each reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

BEASEHE®)

EREINAELENESHBREN
EEMNERTERZHER - ERHA
SEAIZEHEEEREREED - AR
s 2R TR Be e AJ R R 2R 43 (el B
BROM o BLEZ T4 E M AR an AR B 9 R 40
TR ZEMELINELHAEER
IRIRAATBE B B 9B R B F) LA B
FE R Z RN S TAHIR A R R
[El 5 RERR o

BELERRAEERMESNTREHMR
Baf - YR BRI A R ARG
FAY Bl 2 BBk 5B 0 B E R R

L BOE A B R B R 1 3R 45 R
9B s B I A 0 B (B -
TR B 8 o 3R A PO
PRI o

EEVRBENREENERRIZR
AEBRBERRKEHFEELEE
KB EREEFARS HBRBER -

BIEA MO R AN R s R - M EH
2 ER SR E RN SR NIEE
BRAERIN  RUBERT - BIHIRE
RHBETD RN EM 2 RSB &
RIEmER - EXBEHT TS
EERHSGEERIE - HEZETA
EBAMRAE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items of
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Cash and short-term deposits in the consolidated statement
of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at cost. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
are added to or deducted from the cost of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and retention receivables, deposits and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment loss (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sales investment

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments. The Group designated the non-interests
bearing debenture as available-for-sale financial assets on initial
recognition of those items.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of each reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

BEREFBE®

EHEEE)

THREERE

A ESHEEBRINTETA &
wmEREE A R EXW DR
BRAFEFABENERMEE - BN
REWFIRS T ETHRE - ARH
RYIZ R A EERB RIEE IR BE
FRARHESREE -

A ERARE R R ERAEE K
HRBS B B MRS B FE 1R 28 N RERR, o

ERFHBTSYERELEQTE
TREA SERTEM AL ERARE -
AR EZEBEFENRAREHBE
WAL ZFBERENRAILE &
BOTET AR - REHRERILELA
AR RAREERFE(RTXE
AR EEREREBRNEFTER)

TR EEREREE

TREENS RS MRFEBED
R MERBEBBIRILHERE
MEERABE-ANZAFMHME
HEREENRBAARARRASRERE
TE  AEREERGSHBRE

A ERAREMS » HREW
NP EBREIRAOZZEREK
- AR SREN TEEE -

MEEMEREEMS @ BENE
BREeE

o BEUTAIBFHTHEBREVBR
B

o EH WMERHENIMANEHL
N

o MERABAIREBRESETHHE
ER=1

o MBRESHSREEQTRD
B o

- 91/G10Z Hoday [enuuy

DS EEDRR I PaNWIT sBuipjloH doH 994



#-r 91/510¢ Hoday [enuuy

D EBRGTR# pavWI SBUIP|OH doH 994

el

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and
retention receivables and other receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 90 days, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed
in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and retention receivables and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade or retention receivable or other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period in which the impairment takes place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in investments
revaluation reserve. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit
or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of
the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into other financial
liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade, retention and other
payables, bank borrowings and obligations under finance leases
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in investments revaluation reserve is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under
continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on
the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date
of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum
of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part
that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

Provisions, including those arising from the contractual
obligation specified in the service concession arrangement
to maintain or restore the infrastructure before it is handed
over to the grantor, are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates during the
vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit ("CGU") to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or the CGU) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately in profit
or loss.

BEASEHE®)

RBERR > AEEHEBLEER
EEEH L - LNEEA S EATR
BraEEELRRERE - HEE
T ERSR - AeHEEA KOS
B UEEREBENEE
(FnA) - B EMEEHERI B ER T
CeFE  AEEGRTZEEMBR
CEABM(REELEM B
Cl &5 o & A PABR —EEE -2
DEER  CREENGOEZMER
REeELEN  BRICXEEREH
AIMEE-—MEARIEERNREE
EBRHES -

AT 4Bl & BB AR A B R S R AN B
EREEMETNRSE - HEER
BER A AKRETESRAN
RIFTIRRITIH QIRE - ZBRATITIRE
FE R BR B B B E R E AT 5T
EBRZEEFANHRECRITHZER
FHEGARRRERE)

st EE (IR EEER) AT
EEBEREREE  MEEERS
EAEM)HREESAEEE YD
TR o BUEERES ANGt AR

iR EEENEEED - BE(KRE
EAEM)NRmMER AT EELER]
M AT £ 58 - g pR M AR
EfGEANZEE(XREELSE
i) B F 2 I EmAE R EEER R
JEFERHAREE - AR BB S
BB RER R IA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

When measuring fair value except for the Group’s share-based
payment transactions and leasing transactions, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value measurements
into three levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as
follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair value
measurement.
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5. A TEHBRZENEERR
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UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses
reported and disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Construction contracts revenue recognition

The Group recognised contract revenue and profit of a
construction contract according to the management'’s estimation
of the total outcome of the project as well as the percentage
of completion of construction works. Notwithstanding that
the management reviews and revises the estimates of both
contract revenue and costs for the construction contract as the
contract progresses, the actual outcome of the contract in terms
of its total revenue and costs may be higher or lower than the
estimates and this will affect the revenue and profit recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision for long service payments

The cost of the retirement benefits of the Group and the present
value of the defined benefit obligations are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in
the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases, pre-retirement termination, involuntary
termination, early retirement, normal retirement, death and
disability rate. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation
and its long-term nature, a retirement benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at the end of each reporting periods.

The Company makes provision for lump sum payments on
cessation of employment in certain circumstances to employees.
The payments due are dependent on future events and recent
payment experience may not be indicative of future payments.
Any increase or decrease in the provision would affect profit or
loss in future years.

As at 31 March 2016, the carrying amount of the long service
payment obligations is approximately HK$544,000 (2015:
HK$544,000). Further details about the long service payment
obligations are set out in note 27.

Fair value of financial guarantee contracts

The directors of the Company use their judgement in selecting
an appropriate valuation technique for the financial guarantee
contracts, and assumption included the probability of default by
the specified counterparty extrapolated from the market-based
credit information.

As at 31 March 2016, the carrying amount of the guarantees
in respect of performance bonds in favor of the Group’s client
is approximately HK$136,051,000 (2015: HK$51,149,000).
Further details about the financial guarantee contracts are set
out in note 31.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment
over their estimated useful life and after taking into account of
their estimated residual values, using the straight line method.
The estimated useful life reflects the directors’ estimate of
the periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. The residual values reflect the directors’ estimated
amount that the Group would currently obtain from disposal of
the assets, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the
assets were already of the age and in the condition expected
at the end of its useful life. As at 31 March 2016, the carrying
values of property, plant and equipment are approximately
HK$69,983,000 (2015: HK$81,460,000), net of accumulated
depreciation of approximately HK$108,540,000 (2015:
HK$80,874,000).

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade and
retention receivables

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and adjusts credit limits based on payment history
and the customer’s current credit-worthiness, as determined
by the review of their current credit information. The Group
continuously monitors collections and payments from its
customers and maintains a provision for estimated credit losses
based upon its historical experience and any specific customer
collection issues that it has been identified. Credit losses have
historically been within the Group’s expectations and the
Group will continue to monitor the collections from customers
and maintain an appropriate level of estimated credit losses.
As at 31 March 2016, the carrying amounts of trade and
retention receivables are approximately HK$ 154,998,000 (2015:
HK$121,259,000). There was no impairment loss recognised as
at 31 March 2016 and 2015.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. EXERERE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the KREFEEBEEN - HERANEBERE
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while B EEEBRELERE RIS
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation BFEREAEIRKE K - REEE
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy PR A AT RERTE -
remains unchanged from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings REBWE NSRBI IEH L 25T 5
disclosed in note 25, obligations under finance leases disclosed RISRITIEER ~ MIE26FTi B M AR
in note 26, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash EEM - W22 BN A IEEET
disclosed in note 22, and equity attributable to the owners of FEREBITESBREES  URAER
Group, comprising issued share capital and reserves. HEARGER(BEEBTIRA R
) °
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on AAFEEZTGFTFHEEENLEE - 1
a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors of the ABEEEN IS KRAREZEZE
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated BARRK AN B FEE AR R
with each class of capital. Based on the recommendations of BEARNEETNES A58 HE
the directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall BE IR R B« BT E R D [
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share R A R ITH EE S ERIREG &R
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or TR E AR o
the redemption of existing debt.
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. e@TH
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale-investments A HERE 1,460 1,460
Loans and receivables (including BB K ERERIE(BEE KT
pledged bank deposits and RITFER LRI TAEER IR
bank balances and cash) %) 298,532 256,625
Financial liabilities -l =R
Financial liabilities stated at NESHRARS RSB B E
amortised cost 86,144 91,396
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group’s major financial assets and liabilities include trade
and retention receivables, deposits and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and retention payables, accruals and other payables, bank
borrowings and obligations under finance leases. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments included
credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and financial
guarantees provided by the Group is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the amount
of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantee issued
by the Group is disclosed in note 31.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has concentration of credit risk at 29% (2015: 45%)
and 68% and (2015: 86%) of the total trade and retention
receivables was due from the Group'’s largest customer and the
five largest customers respectively.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is in Hong Kong, which accounted for 100% (2015:
100%) of the total trade and retention receivables as at 31
March 2016.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate obligations under finance leases (see note 26 for
details). The Company currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider other necessary action when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to pledged bank deposits, bank balances, variable-rate
bank borrowings and obligations under finance leases (see note
22, 25 and 26). It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at
floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value interest
rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR") arising from the Group’s Hong Kong
dollar denominated borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2015: 100 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March
2016 would increase/decrease by approximately HK$960,000
(2015: HK$853,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its pledged bank deposits, bank
balances, variable-rate bank borrowings and obligation under
finance leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. €I A
Liquidity risk REEEERE
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors EEERHECRME  KNEFER
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed REHERERARANRE RIS
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations EBY UWAREBEMERRERSE
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The ® WRERERERDHTE - &
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and BEERREITERNFERIBERE
obligations under finance leases and ensures compliance with B WHRETEREE o
loan covenants.
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TREFLAEBRIETESR BB
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table TEAEHA - ZRRBREEAIH
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows BRI NN EFHRESRBERE
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the BEEREREE - HMIETES A
Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for other non- ERSIE B THRIHEREE B ERS -
derivative financial liabilities is prepared based on the agreed
repayment dates.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the ZREENERATHESRE - PR
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted LHIK WA BEREATEFR B
amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end of the KRR S REIRER R HE -
reporting period.
Total
Within 1 year undiscounted Carrying
orondemand 1to2years 2to5years  cash flows amount
R—ERE KRR
ZRE —EmF “ERE RERELH RaEE
Liquidity table HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RBEER BT BETT BETT BT BT
At 31 March 2016 2016434318
Trade and retention payables ZHRNTERENRES 45216 - - 45216 45216
Accruals and other payables Bt ERREMENFE 11,601 - - 11,601 11,601
Obligations under finance leases BERERR 17,012 9,931 331 30,254 29,327
Financial quarantee contracts HBEREY 69,636 - - 69,636 -
143,465 9,931 3311 156,707 86,144
At 31 March 2015 #2015%3H318
Trade and retention payables ZSENTARERRES 36,342 - - 36,342 36,342
Accruals and other payables [t ER R AN 19,511 - - 19,511 19,511
Bank borrowings BITEH 683 - - 683 683
Obligations under finance leases HEHEER 16,731 11,747 7,128 35,606 34,360
Financial quarantee contracts BSERAL 51,149 - - 51,149 -
124,916 11,747 7128 143,791 91,39




FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to
settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if
that amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the
Group considers that it is more likely than not that no amount
will be payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a function
of the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the
counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

Fair value measurement objective and policies

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices or
rates from observable current market transactions as input.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of current financial assets, current and non-current
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the financial
statements approximate to their fair values.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M BRRME

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 8.

Information reported to the chief executive officer (“CEOQ"),
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of services provided. The directors of the
Company have chosen to organise the Group around differences
in services. No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at
the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group'’s reportable segments are as follows:
1. Foundation and other civil works; and
2. Tunneling works.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
from continuing operations by reportable and operating

RTTERAEL ([T AR | - Bl 2R
REE ) WS AMEEIR D BL N 7P b H
KRB ENERERN PR HEA RS
Bhl > ARREZRDRERTRRS
MBAEE  TBRERKECEN
AEENFE2HO HHLEEECH
BRI 8D

Hep o K&

Jid

A 2| AT -

1. HEFREMIARTRE: &

2. BETRE-

REBRFT2HREEDHE D HOF
BIREEBWE N BT -

segment.
For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE2016F3A31HLFE
Foundation
and other civil Tunneling
works works Total
WER A
TARIE BETRE was
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT JT BT I
REVENUE &
External revenue SNEBUT ZS 414,714 289,679 704,393
Inter-segment revenue Bzl e 164,135 188,674 352,809
Segment revenue HEp A 578,849 478,353 1,057,202
Eliminations H5H (352,809)
Group revenue SRR 704,393
Segment profit &b ) 118,432 54,478 172,910
Unallocated income FABUA 3,413
Unallocated corporate expenses KA B AT (62,193)
Unallocated finance cost RAOERVE AR (1,061)
Profit before taxation B FL BT A 113,069




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M BRRME

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2015

8. WEKkDIBER (&)

W

okt

Bk s 2 SR (48)

HZE2015F3A31BILFE

Foundation
and other civil Tunneling
works works Total
HE K
EfEARTHE By TH2 FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T
REVENUE Uz
External revenue SNEBUT S 298,757 278,576 577,333
Inter-segment revenue 7R UL s 163,528 180,014 343,542
Segment revenue A E 462,285 458,590 920,875
Eliminations H8H (343,542)
Group revenue £l 577,333
Segment profit 86 86,395 74,943 161,338
Unallocated income KAOBCU A 6,539
Unallocated corporate expenses KA ARIR X (60,700)
Unallocated finance cost RO BLRELE R AN (976)
Profit before taxation MR F AT A 106,201

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4. Segment
profit represents the profit earned by each segment without
allocation of central administration costs, directors’ salaries,
other income and interest on bank borrowings. This is the
measure reported to the chief executive officer for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are conducted with terms mutually agreed
by both contract parties.

R AR & ETER SR MY 48
AEES S RRAR - 2a0EFEE
YESEPRITEEAN - EFEHS
HAl A B SRTT 18 R0 B A R EX A9
A o B EETERS R R KRR
FHEMRITRAAR RN X

SR HE IR B R BT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M BRRME

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

8.

WKk oEHER @)

T RAEE R 2HEEEDHNE

by reportable and operating segment: ENBES:

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Foundation and other civil works HE N E R THE 112,001 105,624

Tunneling works BxiE T2 78,217 59,942

Total segment assets DESEELBRR 190,218 165,566
Corporate and other unallocated NAIREMADEEEE

assets 192,026 183,564

Total assets BEBSE 382,244 349,130

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Foundation and other civil works EREMEARTIE 42,471 27,568

Tunneling works PBriE Ti2 77,882 108,709

Total segment liabilities DEPBIEERE 120,353 136,277
Corporate and other unallocated ARRHMKRDEBE

liabilities 37,589 73,208

Total liabilities BEREsE 157,942 209,485

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments.

1.

All assets are allocated to operating segment, other than
unallocated property, plant and equipment, debentures,
pledged bank deposits, bank balance and cash, deposits,
prepayments and other receivables. Assets used jointly
by reportable segments are allocated on the basis of the
revenues earned by individual reportable segments; and

All liabilities are allocated to operating segments, other
than certain trade payables, accrual and other payables,
certain obligations under finance leases, bank borrowings,
tax payable, long service payment obligations and deferred
tax liabilities. Liabilities for which reportable segments are
jointly liable are allocated in proportion to segment assets.

ERD R RBELR D G E D B EIR
BRmE -

1.

BARDEME  MERRE B
7 DHEIRRITER - RITHEER
kRE BE  BNFEREMD
EUKIBIN  FIEEEADET
REDED - 2, ABHREEA
#) & B PR A B AT 2 o 5P BREX
e E SRS - R

BETHEZENRIE B
EREMENRIE  REMEE
HTETEE  RITHER - BN
BIE ~ REIIRA 1 BORSE SR AT
HMBAEN - FEREONET
2B o BRI 2y BRI
EOHRERRBROBEENLID
fic



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M BRRME

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

8.

A/

WKk oEHER @)

Bl

Foundation
and other civil Tunneling
works works Unallocated Total
HE R H A
TAIR BETRE RAE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BRI
Year ended 31 March 2016 HZE2016F3A31H
LFE
Amounts included in the measure of ~ BIFEFHES RIS
segment profit or segment assets: PHEENSE
Depreciation neE 15,195 8,906 5,217 29,318
Additions to non-current assets NEERBEE 4,893 - 12,948 17,841
Interest expenses FER% 542 - 1,061 1,603
Write off of a trade receivable W3S S IEWFIA 54 - - 54
Gain on disposal of property, plantand ~ HEWE  BER
equipment RER Y = = (162) (162)
Amounts regularly provided tothe ~ THETBE&REE
chief operating decision maker REETEERTE
but not included in the measure of PHBENRAFDEE
segment profit or segment assets: HEE:
Interest income FIEBHA = = (418) (418)
Income tax expense FSHRY = = 18,803 18,803
Foundation
and other civil Tunneling
works works Unallocated Total
HE R H A
TARIRE BEIR R &gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BETT BRI
Year ended 31 March 2015 HZE2015F3A31H
H5E
Amounts included in the measure of GIEEEE S WRFIR
segment profit or segment assets: S HEEMNEHE
Depreciation e 15,129 7,237 5,365 27,731
Additions to non-current assets REIEREEE 2,543 - 22,697 25,240
Loss on written off of property, plant and #i$5#1% - #22 &
equipment HEREE - - 549 549
Interest expenses I BFY 599 192 976 1,767
Gain on disposal of property, plantand  H&E9% - #eE2 K
equipment s (55) - (2,038) (2,093)
Amounts regularly provided to the EHAT ELLEREE
chief operating decision maker REEBTIEEETE
but not included in the measure of  FPRFIRHHPEE
segment profit or segment assets: (I &% :
Interest income FEUA - - (870) (870)
Income tax expense FrisHif% - - 19,555 19,555
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M BRRME

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding year contributing
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as follows:

Company A’ NEAT
Company B2 NGl
Company C3 ~AC

8.

WKk oEHER @)

IEEFHNEH
RIERFERAEEB RS R RER
10% M) E F YT
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
325,743 300,435
84,107 74,129
83,893 141,866

1 Revenue from both foundation and other civil works and tunneling
works segments.

2 Revenue from both foundation and other civil works and tunneling
works segments in 2016 and from tunneling works segment in 2015.

3 Revenue from foundation and other civil works segment.

Geographical information

The Group is organised into two operating segments as
foundation and other civil works and tunneling works primarily
in Hong Kong and all revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities
and capital expenditures are predominantly attributable to
these two segments. Accordingly, no segment analysis by
geographical information is presented.

! REAMWEREMT RIS BREET
2o e b o

2 20165 R & #h B R E fth = AR T2 5 50
NEERE TR EBA A 2015F R B8
T2 AU -

3 REMEREA AR TS ZBAULES o

I E R

AEBEBRETEHMARELEDER
B3 B I E At £ R TH2 LA R B 38 T 72
AR MArAWE - X BERA
BEREAFAXTEREZMADES
it - BHERIZER 25D E AT -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M BRRME

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HflgtA
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Rental income from property, REWE - R N ERER
plant and equipment GiE AL N 903 1,199
Government subsidy (Note) BRI BY (AT at) 752 1,511
Sales of scrap materials SHERER 613 -
Insurance claim RS E 484 421
Bank interest income HRITHLEWA 418 870
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - e RRERE
plant and equipment 162 2,093
Sundry income EIET PN 81 258
Reversal of provision of long service [ REAFRIE & B /5
payment = 242
3,413 6,594

97

Note: The income represents government subsidy received under the “Ex-
gratia Payment Scheme for Phasing Out Pre-Euro IV Diesel Commercial
Vehicles” in 2015 and 2016 upon disposal of certain motor vehicles.

Hiat . AR EE T IAE%&IRKE20156
20164 [ 58 I & K BX 23 78 HA LA BT 42
B R E BT RSO BUT
e -

10. B E KA

#H 91/5107 Hoday [enuuy
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10. FINANCE COSTS

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T ST T

Interest on: LA
— bank borrowings —RITIER 642 628
— obligations under finance leases —REREST 961 1,139

1,603 1,767
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M BRRME

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FRSHBEX
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current year taxation REERIE

Hong Kong Profits Tax BBENGEH 18,876 16,360

(Over) under provision in prior years:  {E4F (FBRERHE) BET B -
Hong Kong Profits Tax EEFEH (814) 652
Deferred taxation (note 28) RIETRE(H7228) 741 2,543
18,803 19,555

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

The charge for the year to Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
relieved by approximately HK$1,835,000 (2015: HK$879,000) as
a result of tax losses brought forward from previous years.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

REEE  BENEH IR ER
BaM16.5%:TE RS -

ARHMEBESTFAE - AT
EEBANEHILERENBE
1,835,000 7T (20154 : /& # 879,000
JL) °

REFRA N ARG SRR REM
EEUEERARBRRADR M E RN T -

2016 2015
HKS$000 HK$'000
BET T BT IT
Profit before taxation A AR A 113,069 106,201
Tax calculated at the domestic LA 16.5%
income tax rate of 16.5% FFERTIE 18,656 17,523
Tax effect of income not taxable HERIRU AR
for tax purposes e (22) (253)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7~ B] 0 BT T8 5 2 59
for tax purposes Mg 1,063 1,633
(Over) under provision in prior years — fF4F (GBEEREE ) BB 2 (814) 652
Effect of tax exemption granted BERRIER R
(Note) T2 (HE) (80) -
Income tax expense for the year FEERHFX 18,803 19,555

Note: Tax exemption represents a reduction of Hong Kong Profits Tax for
the year of assessment 2015/2016 by 75%, subject to a ceiling of

HK$20,000.

Mt BiER R BB RS B R 2015
F 2016 FRHELRETIS% &
LR EE A B E20,0007T ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M BRRME

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:

12. FE&F

FRG M TR Mo S TRER -

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Staff costs BTKA
— Salaries and other benefits — & RAMER] 134,798 112,911
— Contributions to retirement — R ET B R
benefits scheme 6,084 5,021
Total staff costs (excluding directors’ B T2 AN (=& Kb
remuneration (note 13)) (B75£13)) 140,882 117,932
Auditor’s remuneration IZ AN & 600 340
Write off of a trade receivable 3H B 5 FENGRIA 54 -
Depreciation of property, plantand )3 - #22 MREITE
equipment 29,318 27,731
Minimum lease payment under BTN SHENKEEHRE
operating leases in respect of: IR
— office premises, site offices, —PAE - HMBRAE -
storage area and staff quarter FHEEEIRES 3,796 4,118
— machinery — M 23,748 12,818
27,544 16,936
Loss on written off of property, WEHZE - e K
plant and equipment RiEREE = 549
Exchange difference PEH =58 98 6
Listing expenses FhAX 5,712 7,609
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M BRRME

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2015:
four) directors and the CEO of the Company were as follows:

13. EERTHRA R M

BN HENARR AL (20154 - 1
) EE MITHAARHF BT :

Year ended 31 March 2016 BE2016F3A31HLFE
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
#iiEs BUHfES
Mr.
Mr. Wong Chi
Mr. Leung Hung Mr. Mr. Keung,
Jim Yin Kwan, Mr. Kwong, Mr. Lee Luk Shiu Yu Hon Kwan Johnny
Jackin - Chui Mo Ming Derrick  Yan ChiTat (Note i) (Note i) (Note i) Total
ktE  fEMEE  IRERs
Zx EREEE GRELE  REti4  ERERE (i) (ki) (ki) &t
Qg_, % HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
g% BETT BT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BT
'§'“:3: Emoluments paid or FEBALRRAT
23 recelvable In respect ENRCRER
% :; of a person’s services EESRIES
: as a director, whether e
& of the Company or
8 s subsidary
% undertaking
Fees ok - - - - 69 69 69 27
- Other emoluments; HfEM
Salaries and 5E REMER
other benefits 2,612 1,99 1,515 1512 - - - 7693
Retirement benefit RIVETIFT B
scheme contributions 9% 75 46 63 - - - 278
Total oty 2,706 2,069 1,561 1,635 69 69 69 8,178
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2015

13. EERITHRART M@

HZE2015F3A31BILFE

Executive directors

HiTEE
Mr. Leung
Mr. Jim Mr. Chui Hung Kwong, Mr.
Yin Kwan, Mo Ming Derrick ~ Yan Chi Tat
Jackin (Note if) (Note if) (Note if) (Note if) Total
f REBLE  PEREE  BEERE
(Hizi) (W) (M, (M 4aaT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS' HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of FEBATRALARA
a person’s services as a director, whether of MEBCEIREZENR
the Company or its subsidiary undertaking PRI
Fees we - - - - -
Other emoluments: At EH -
Salaries and other benefits & RAMEN 1922 1,549 1,487 1,527 6,485
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BINEFFT LR 107 91 58 62 318
Total =t 2,029 1,640 1,545 1,589 6,803

Notes:
() Appointed on 25 November 2015

(i) Appointed on 12 February 2015

The non-interests bearing debenture issued by International
Christian School with principal amount of HK$1,000,000 was
purchased for the benefit of Mr. Jim Yin Kwan, Jackin’s child
and would be refunded upon the graduation of the director’s
child. The investment is measured at cost less impairment for
both years.

Mr. Yan Chi Tat is also the CEO of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the chief executive.

Neither the CEO nor any of the directors waived any
emoluments for both years.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors and
CEO of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office for both years.

Biat -
()  F2015%11 A25HEZRT

(i) M2015F2 B 12BEZT

HEBEHEEERMETASE AR
#1,000,0007TH 2 B EH RAEREBL L
ERTFROFEMEE - WEBRZE
ENTLEEETIUEE - RMES
B - ZBEERERKARRERE -

BSERENMRARRNITHARE -
BEREXBEENFMEERESTE
1T A B TR AR 5 IRTS ©

RAEFER - BETBAAR R EM
EEHEREAME -

RREFER - AEBELERARE]
EAESRITBARE ST EMM 2
AINATRER B N AR £R (B 5 1Y 22 B
KA RBERAE(E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M BRRME

14. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 14. &M A L

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the AEBRERRFMALTH - Hpm
Group, four (2015: four) of them were directors and the CEO of A(2015%F : QA ) BARARIESENT
the Company whose emoluments are included in the disclosure B, HMENHINE FEN £
in Note 13 above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2015: 113 o Flgh—H AT (20159 : —A)
one) individual were as follows: E T
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Salaries, allowances and e B MEAMET
other benefits 904 1,135
Contributions to retirement benefits B /g F5t &4t 2k
scheme 49 18
25 953 1,153
Fx
% :;% Their emoluments were within the following bands HBEOP SN T A THE
@
g5
;g 2016 2015
W& No. of employees No. of employees
%H% EE&H EEHE
el
= Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 ZT%%#1,000,0007T 1 -
Al HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 7B#1,000,0017TE
- 7#1,500,0007T - 1
15. DIVIDENDS 15. RE
2016 2015
HK$"000 HK$’'000
BET T BT T
Interim dividends recognised as RARE R HERE

distribution during the year mr HARS B 0 R 127,200 40,000




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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16.

. DIVIDENDS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company paid
interim dividends of HK$102,000,000 (HK$102,000 per share).
In addition, interim dividends of HK$18,000,000 (HK$18,000
per share) and HK$7,200,000 (HK$7,200 per share) were
paid by subsidiaries, Yee Hop Construction Company Limited
(“Yee Hop Construction”) and Y.H. Foundations Limited (“Y.H.
Foundations”), to their then shareholders respectively, prior to
the completion of the Reorganisation.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, an interim dividend
of HK$40,000,000 (HK$2.7 per share) was paid by Yee Hop
Engineering Company Limited (“Yee Hop Engineering”), to its
then shareholders, prior to the completion of the Reorganisation.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, there was no
final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2016
per share has been proposed by the directors and is subject
to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

15.

16.

RE#)
REE2016F3A31BILFEE » AR
IR 15 /R A % 2% % 102,000,000 7T
(KB H102,0007T) © thoh - FRERR
B75#18,000,0007T (A% 18,000
7T ) N 78 # 7,200,000 T ( & IR B #E
7.20070) M B AR EAEZEAR
RAHREBEDREGHEBRA
AI(I&EAHE ) REATKRTD FIM
HERREIRR -

REE2015F3A3MBILFE &4
IRBERAR(EAIRREMRT
P A1 7] L & B AR BROIR A AR B AR BB S
40,000,000 T (B #E%2.770) »

REpEHIRE - BEE2016F3 A31
HIEFEMS  EEMEEREMTR
HRE - WS ERAEETHR
RAE LHER T RIER o

ZRER
ARD B A REL 0 G AR A 5
BFITSRE T Y BIEE S

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Earnings 2
Earnings for the purpose of basic BREtESIK
earnings per share ERENE BT 94,294 86,001
Number of shares RGHE
Weighted average number of ordinary BB st & & RE AR
shares for the purpose of basic D253 3B AR
earnings per share (Note) 88 (i) 407,712 354,048

Note: The weighted average number of shares for the purpose of basic
earnings per share for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015 have
been retrospectively adjusted for the effects of capitalisation of the
ordinary shares of the Company which took place during the years
ended 31 March 2016 and 2015 as reorganisation for the preparation
for the Company’s listing.

The dilutive earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings
per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.

Kiat : B 220165 K2015F3 A31H L4
B ARFTEERELRRF G MEFE
HBRMBECBPAE  URER
2016F K% 2015F3 331 H L FEMAT
BITAEEAAR EMIEHEANE
NEIEBRENMBEITRE -

BRE 220164 X2015F3 A31H 1
FEVETMAESENORITES
Bl BREERNENSREARR
F o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M BRRME

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. D2 - HEBERRE

Leasehold Machinery and Motor
improvement equipment vehicles Total
HEMELE WERFE AE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETRT  B%TR BETE
COST R
At 1 April 2014 20145418 873 134,982 11,245 147,100
Additions RE - 16,972 8,268 25,240
Written off bilE:] - (3,527) (1,024) (4,551)
Disposals e - (3,749) (1,706) (5,455)
At 31 March 2015 and M2015%F3A31H K
1 April 2015 2015F4A1H 873 144,678 16,783 162,334
Additions RE 757 10,620 6,464 17,841
Disposals HeE - - (1,652) (1,652)
At 31 March 2016 #®20164F3A31H 1,630 155,298 21,595 178,523
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION BHRE
At 1 April 2014 W2014F4818 873 52,971 7,714 61,558
Charge for the year EREA - 25,826 1,905 27,731
Written off bilk:: - (3,189) (813) (4,002)
Eliminated on disposals HE R - (2,716) (1,697) (4,413)
At 31 March 2015 and M2015F3A318 K
1 April 2015 20154 A1H 873 72,892 7,109 80,874
Charge for the year FREA 114 26,148 3,056 29,318
Eliminated on disposals HE R Y - - (1,652) (1,652)
At 31 March 2016 7201643 H31H 987 99,040 8,513 108,540
NET CARRYING VALUES REFE
At 31 March 2016 72016%F3H31H 643 56,258 13,082 69,983
At 31 March 2015 M201593A31H - 71,786 9,674 81,460

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis on the following basis:

Over the shorter of the term of
lease or 3 years

20% per annum

20% per annum

Leasehold improvement

Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles

WME - BB RRETIRIATEERA
BRRITE

HEWE REEFHR=F
£i& ZEBREE

Wkt EF20%

B BF20%
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
The carrying values of plant and equipment held under finance
leases were as follows:

17. 3% ~ B RFRE®E)

UREHEREMKE RENER
ELEINE

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Machinery and equipment 22 MR 33,501 48,535
Motor vehicles HE 10,727 7,328
44,228 55,863

18. DEBENTURES 18. 8%
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Unlisted debt securities REMEBES 1,000 1,000
Club debenture, at cost BEaER(EA - FZRAN 460 460
1,460 1,460

The debt securities represented the non-interests bearing
debenture issued by International Christian School with principal
amount of HK$1,000,000. The debenture was purchased for
the benefit of a director’s child and would be refunded upon the
graduation of the director’s child. The investment is measured at
cost less impairment throughout the reporting period.

The club debenture represents club membership in a private
club in Hong Kong. The directors of the Company consider no
impairment identified with reference to the second hand market
price of the club debenture as at the end of the reporting
period.

BB HFEEELBERERMETAR
S 5E A H1,000,000TH R BES
ZEHFRA—BEENTRNFEM
BE UVERZESNTREEET
LURE - REMEREH @ ZBERER
RANBURERT = °

B ESEEE R ABLEIH
BTG  ARFEERREER
SR WERZELRESF—F
SEMMERRIE
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19. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES

The following is an analysis of trade and retention receivables at

19. ESEWFERERREE

REREHRR - BHERUBFARER

the end of each reporting period: RESHOWMIOT
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade receivables 2alE e 107,002 85,341
Retention receivables (Note) JEWIRE & (B5E) 47,996 35,918
Trade and retention receivables B 5 I IE & ERE S 154,998 121,259

Note: Except for the amounts of approximately HK$18,065,000 (2015:
HK$11,626,000) which were expected to be recovered or settled after
one year, all of the remaining balances are expected to be recovered
within one year. Retention receivables are included in current assets as
the Group expects to realise these within its normal operating cycle. No
impairment loss has been provided as these retention receivables relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group does not have a standardised and universal credit
period granted to its customers, and the credit period of
individual customer is considered on a case-by-case basis and
stipulated in the project contract, as appropriate. The following
is an aged analysis of trade receivables, presented based on the
certified report which approximates revenue recognition date
at the end of each reporting period, and net of impairment loss
recognised:

Wit . &4 A 118,065,000t (2015
£ B111,626,0007T ) FBA —FE £ 1
Bl sk B &SN - BT 8 T sRIBTEHE A
R—FRUkE - ARAEETEHRE
—MREBRBEREZSERRES -
MERRE ST AR EE - BR%
LSRR E S ERID S EEL
RENEFAR  WALETIRRES
BRE -

AR B E UL F GRS A TR

[}
o °

AEEREFERERBNEENRT
HEEE - @R EPHEERITHRES
& I 26 Ko 7018 B & 497 R E (205E
F3) o RIRE R E R E RS R A
HIRENRERE 20 E ZBUGK
T BR ik 0 AT (H0FR 2 FERR YR E S
B)mT

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

0 to 30 days 0%30H 46,651 28,889
31 to 60 days 31£60H 28,065 31,911
61 to 90 days 61290H 19,218 3,085
91 to 180 days 91£180H 12,375 20,280
181 to 365 days 181%365H 693 -
Over 365 days 365HM £ - 1,176
107,002 85,341

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances were
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$13,068,000 (2015: HK$21,456,000) which were past due
at the end of the reporting period for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of balances past due but not impaired as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.

AR EEE 5 EWRFBLESNES
ANIREEEAE LB 13,068,0007T
(20154 : /% 21,456,0007T) © 3%
Lo MEEAD AL AAEH
WEST IR EEIB G - BREBAAL
B AR EEE=zIEEREHAL
BWE AT 28R - MEHERA
I 4 Bk B 8 BB I RO E R 45 4
TRV E RS -
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19. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
The aged analysis of trade receivable that were past due but not
impaired are as follows:

19.

ESERREREKRES
(&)

BB RERENE S EUGIENER
BT

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

0 to 90 days 0290H 12,375 20,280
91 to 180 days 91£180H 693 -
181 to 365 days 181&365H = -
Over 365 days 365H AL - 1,176
13,068 21,456

The directors of the Company consider that there has not been
a significant change in credit quality of the trade receivables and
there is no recent history of default, therefore the amounts are
considered recoverable.

During the year, the Group has written off a trade receivable
amount of HK$54,000 (2015: Nil) that is considered not to be
recoverable.

ARPEEREEHERFBEEE
EVEEAESE AT EELT
8% At ZeEEAR AR B -

RARFE - $E@EW£¢;%&$E7%TT
U [B1 9 5 FE UL FR 18 & BB /8 #554,000
JT(2015% : &) -

20. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS 20. FEE u& (Ef)EFEHNIRE
FOR CONTRACT WORK IE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Contracts in progress at REBREHRHWEEZEYN
the end of each reporting period:
Contract costs incurred plus BEES AR ND R F
recognised profits less e EREE
recognised losses 1,353,794 676,316
Less: progress billings B EER (1,403,361) (767,764)
Amounts due to customers for ERNREFPEHITIENRE
contract work (49,567) (91,448)
Analysed for reporting BEBEMME2HMT :
purpose as:
Amounts due from customers for JEWERF AL TIEFTE
contract work 11,829 5,542
Amounts due to customers for ENEFAHIIRRIE
contract work (61,396) (96,990)
(49,567) (91,448)

As at 31 March 2016, retentions held by customers for contract
works included in trade and retention receivables of the Group
amounted to HK$47,996,000 (2015: HK$35,918,000) (Note 19).

MN20165E3 8318 » BEEPHALH IR
FENRESCBREAEEE S EK
FE K e IR [E & %8 547,996,000 7T
(20154 : 7535 918,0007T) (F3E19) ©

-
(=]
N
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21. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 21. 1€ - AAREREMER
RECEIVABLES IR
The following is an analysis of deposits, prepayments and other RERERKR - e FANFERE
receivables at the end of each reporting period: Hb U R IBER AT AR
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Deposits Be 4,610 3,412
Prepayments TEfTRIE 440 3,77
Other receivables H A fE YR IR 4,338 1,825
9,388 9,008

22,

Other receivables with amount of approximately HK$1,157,000
(2015: HK$96,000) are secured over the guarantees in respect
of performance bonds in favor of its clients. Details refer to
notes 31 and 32.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES
AND CASH

Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. All bank deposits
have been pledged to secure short-term bank borrowings and
are therefore classified as current assets.

Pledged bank deposits carried fixed interest rate at 0.30% per
annum (2015: fixed interest rate ranging from 0.30% to 4.1%
per annum).

Bank balances earned interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates which range from 0% to 1.1% per annum
(2015: 0% to 4.1% per annum).

22.

SR BABH1,157,0007T (20154 ¢
75 #596,0007T ) H) EL Ab FE U R IE LA B8
BTARERFHBHORIERED
B - FEF2HEMFE31 %32 -

EEPRITERBRITHEER
RBRE

B IRTT 7 5K 48 M IR 1T I 4 DAJEER
BT AKENRITREBENTR
P B SR1T7F R 2 AR IR A HRAG B IR
TEE AU ARBEE -

EEBRTHERETEFEAE0.30%
(20154 : EEFENFFFE0.30%
F41%) o

RITHEBIEET R RITERN XY
FRENTFEFER0%ZE1.1% (2015
o EFEO%EALN %) BEH S o
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23. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES

The following is an analysis of trade and retention payables at

23. ESENFERENRES
RE MK - B 5 R 8 R A

the end of each reporting period: REEZHAITOT :
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BRI
Trade payables B S FERFIR 37,118 33,147
Retention payables FERRES 8,098 3,695
45,216 36,842

REEMMNFHEERR30E60A -
REE T B RT B 75 L B T R AT
RFTE A RIARBRRERAES

The average credit period on purchases of goods is from 30 to
60 days. The Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit

S
timeframe. The following is the aged analysis of trade payables REBREHAR BHEMNFIERER ez
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting HEFTERRRE ST T ¢ £z
period: 2s

3%

&5

2016 2015 25
HK$'000 HK$'000 e
BT T BT T s
il
0 to 90 days 0z290H 37,004 31,957 KE
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 31 24 "l
181 to 365 days 181&365H 67 16
Over 365 days 365H AL 16 1,150 -
37,118 33,147
In the consolidated statement of financial position, retention RIEEEBBHRRAERR - B REED
payables were classified as current liabilities. The aging of the HRrBaE - BNRESOREDN
retention payables was as follows: N
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Within 1 year 1R 6,138 2,338
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5%F 1,960 1,357

8,098 3,695
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24. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. Rt RA R At B FIR
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Accrued audit fee fEstEETER 600 300
Accrued salary fEETE & 7,492 8,162
Accrued professional fee [T HEER 173 291
Provision for legal claim (Note) SRR REBE (M) 2,127 4,127
Accrued listing expenses fEET ETER = 5,677
Other payable E e FRIE 1,209 954
11,601 19,511
P Note: A subsidiary has been named as a defendant in High Court actions st . SEBEBRRAHS (1)R20145F MRS
é % in respect of two disputes of (1) the outstanding legal fee and (2) the HERE R RQR2011 F AR
%‘; outstanding service fee for amounts of approximately HK$1,914,000 BER - 2D R4 EE1,914,000
§ g and HK$6,100,000 in 2014 and 2011 respectively. According to JT N 816,100,000 © —EHIE AR
§§ court order, a sum of HK$4,000,000 was paid to the court in 2014 EREE AR AR IMES A E
B in respect of the service fee dispute and additional of approximately B A< - BERSE RO
;é HK$2,127,000 and HK$2,000,000 provision for any potential liability “y 4 H 5 4,000,0007T B R 2014 F
wE been made in the consolidated financial statements in prior years for FEEX - RARARE D RIBER
& legal fee dispute and service fee dispute respectively. The case on BERUD LR ERUDERERL
Hé service fee dispute was settled during the year on 20 July 2015. The AESRINBAEFELREVERESR
E% case on legal fee dispute was ongoing up to the date of this report. YEH 9 B4 /7B 12,127,000 7T & &
&) #2,000,000 TTRESMER - FA 0 70
201597 A208 © R BEAUH AT
- BT - BREZERERUONRMY
HEAREBHDNATE -
25. BANK BORROWINGS 25. SR1TIEE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Bank borrowings RITIEE
Secured bank loans — carrying BEMBITER —ER
amount repayable within —FREEREE
one year and amount shown FIWEREI B ENSRE
under current liabilities - 683

* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements.

FEFIB T RER A EET &R A
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25. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

The bank borrowings were denominated in HK$ for the
years.

At 31 March 2015, secured bank loans carried interest at
floating rates ranging from 2.42% to 3% per annum (2016:
Nil).

The amounts of banking facilities and the utilisation at the
end of the reporting period are set out as follows:

25.

SRATIEE (40
(&) REEFE  RITEELBTE
-

(b) P 201543 A31H - HEHE
TERD R ZFBERNENF
2.42%ZE3%5 (20165 + Z) o

(@ MBEMRBITBESHENDA
BRI T

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT

Facility amount BhE TR 149,760 159,601
Utilisations at 31 March MR3A31HEAER

— Secured bank borrowings —BEPEITEE = 683

— Finance lease —RmERE 32,023 33,641

— Performance bonds — AR EER 42,893 49,231

74,916 83,555

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, banking facilities were secured
by assets pledged as set out in note 32:

pledged bank deposits of the Group as set out in note 22;

certain properties and securities of a related company as at
31 March 2015 and released as at 31 March 2016;

certain receivables of a subsidiary;

guarantee for an amount of approximately 80% of
the amounts granted by a bank to the Group from the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region with outstanding balance of approximately
HK$106,000 as at 31 March 2015, and released as at 31
March 2016;

unlimited personal guarantee provided by the directors of
the Company on certain banking facilities not utilised as at
31 March 2016 and the banking facilities were cancelled
subsequently in May 2016; and

corporate guarantees from entities within the Group

HZE2016% N 2015F3 318 » BT
BB Thm K FE32FTE M B E R

°
=

T&ZZFFr%C$‘§ B2 HEHRITF

2 3

o —[HEEARHEHZE201593H31
BREZE2016F3 831 BHERKRH
ETWERES

o EHTRK—EMEIREA

o HBRAITHEEMAFMN201593
A31ARAEE R FIRITF R
EREEELIS0% @ KEEHEEL
A 7E%106,0007T © WR2016%43
A31HEE

o ARAFEZREE2016F3H31
HHEARB ARG TIRITRERME
R EBREAMEIR - MRTTREE
BE2 B H2016F5 A5Es + K

o AEEANEEARER
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26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

26. MEHESHTE

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T

Analysed for reporting purposes as:  BEIRE B IS T ¢
Current liabilities BB E 16,353 15,964
Non-current liabilities ERBAGE 12,974 18,396
29,327 34,360

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its motor vehicles and
machinery under finance lease. The average lease term is 2-5
years. The obligation under finance leases carried interest at
floating rates from 2.63% to 5.25% per annum, and at fixed
rates from 1.18% to 2.25% per annum.

AEBNBRAERERENERE
HETAREREW - FHHEBAE2E
S5 c BEMERTUNERFMNEN
F263%ZE525% @ A K1.18% &
2.25% M EE FHFEETE o

Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
RERENR REHENRRE
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT oL
Amounts payable under finance leases AT EEN £ 5B
Within one year —FR 17,012 16,731 16,353 15,964
More than one year but less than two B3B8 —F BT Z A
years = 9,931 11,747 9,692 11,374
More than two years but less than five BB EETZAT
years =3 3,311 7,128 3,282 7,022
30,254 35,606 29,327 34,360
Less: future finance charges B KRR E R (927) (1,246) N/A N/A
B A NiE
Present value of obligations under EHESFRE
finance lease 29,327 34,360
Less: amounts due for settlement B BR—EREE
within 1 year (shown under IB(BI{ERED
current liabilities) aE) (16,353) (15,964)

Amounts due for settlement after 1 year ZBR—E1&(EEIIE

12,974 18,396
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26.

27.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

(Continued)

As at 31 March 2016, the finance leases are secured by certain
property, plant and equipment with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$44,228,000 (2015: HK$55,863,000) of
subsidiaries and corporate guarantees of the Company of not
less than HK$10,000,000 (2015: Nil).

LONG SERVICE PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees who
have completed at least five years of service with the Group.
The amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary
and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements accrued
under the Group's retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group. The Group does not set aside
any assets to fund any remaining obligations.

26.

27.

MERESE T

R2016F3A31H  EHAEUNE
N EBRMEE AB144,228,00070(2015
£ : 655,863,000 ) HIE T Y -
BB R ERAR B ERERT D
10,000,000 (20154F « &) »

REBRBEEE

REEERERN  AREBEET
BRATHRLEAARSKTEETKE
PEFRBOETEE N —FEK
B BN RBERFZERENZKE
¥re MRGFEHME - WHRRAE
BEAKGHERAKEESRENES
o AEBEYBEETAEEARE
A TEERTES -

Movement in the long service payment obligations is as follows: RERBeEENEHIT -
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’'000
BET T BT T
At 1 April R4A1H 544 786
Credited to profit or loss s ABE - (242)
At 31 March M3A31H 544 544

The provision represents the management’s best estimate of the
Group's liability at the end of the reporting period.

The value of the retirement benefits of the Group was
determined by the management’s best estimation which is
based on the actual valuation.

BEREEERNRSHREAEER
BRI

AEBENEABHEENEREEER
BERGEFREGAMEE
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28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 28. BILEFIBHEE
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax liabilities, after UTAREMSH(BE)RIKEST
set off certain deferred tax assets against deferred liabilities of BERIBEEYN AR ETENIEL
the same taxable entity, for the financial reporting purposes: BEBHODN  ESABMBRE A
B
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFFS AR (7,669) (6,928)
The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) RAEERBEFE  DHEANEE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior RIEFTSTHEE (AE) REZEHINT :
years:
23
5;5 Accelerated
g § tax
gé depreciation Tax losses Total
= IEBIEFE HIEEE RE
gé HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
iﬁ% BT T BT T BT T
s
i At 1 April 2014 720144 A1 H (7,208) 2,823 (4,385)
= Charged to profit and loss mraE=AE1)
Al (note 11) (1,664) (879) (2,543)
- At 31 March 2015 72015434318
and 1 April 2015 K2015F4/18 (8,872) 1,944 (6,928)
Credited (charged) to profit or AR B )1ER
loss (note 11) (Kfat11) 1,203 (1,944) (741)

At 31 March 2016 7201653 H31H (7,669) = (7,669)
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. |R7
Number of shares Share capital
RGEE R
2016 2015 2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFR  BETR

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each EIXFI{EE%0.017T

EOR=S ]l
Authorised EE
At the beginning of the year REEA) 38,000,000 - 380 -
Upon incorporation on 7201592 H12H
12 February 2015 (Note a) SH AR 7 B
(Hfita) - 38,000,000 - 380 > <
Increase on 25 November 2015 522015411 A25H gz
(Note b) g hn(Hratb) 1,522,000,000 - 15,220 - £z
=g
At 31 March #W3A31H 1,560,000,000 38,000,000 15,600 380 =5l
23
Issued and fully paid ERITRAZE % *
At the beginning of the year REA) 1 - - - &
Issue of shares (Note a) BT (Mita) - 1 - - [
Issued in consolidation for the WEEEAIRE &
acquisition of the issued share BEEITRAmES
capital of YH Investments BIT(Matc) —
(Note ¢) 99 - - -
Issue of new shares in connection  BtAN A TIRR (5 _E 3
with the listing of shares of the  1T¥A% % (#/5%d)
Company (Note d) 125,000,000 - 1,250 -
Capitalisation issue of shares B EITRR D
(Note e) (Kiate) 374,999,900 - 3,750 -
At 31 March M3A31H 500,000,000 1 5,000 -
Notes: et -
(@ The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the (@ ZARFNR2015F2ANBERERS
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liability on 12 BBEARZEAMEKZLAEREBRA
February 2015 with an authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided 7] HBEH380,000TAERA (D B
into 38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each, of which one share was 38,000,000 4% &A% EI{E &% 0.01 oK%
allotted and issued fully paid to an initial subscriber at par, which was ) - ER1RRORAR B SR EE
then transferred to YH Assets on the same date. ERFCAB R REITTVIRREA

P EAZBEE T YH Assets ©



- 91/910Z Hoday [enuuy

DISERSOPM PRHWIT SBUIPOH dOH 334

I el

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(@]

On 25 November 2015, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased from HK$380,000 to HK$15,600,000 by the creation of
an additional 1,522,000,000 new Shares of HK$0.01 each.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation and as consideration for the acquisition
by the Company of the entire issued share capital of YH Investments
from YH Assets on 14 August 2015 in consideration of allotting and
issuing 99 shares, all credited as fully paid up, to YH Assets.

On 17 December 2015, the Company issued a total of 125,000,000
ordinary shares HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$1.0 per share as a
result of the completion of the placing. Of the total gross proceeds
amounting to HK$125,000,000, HK$1,250,000 representing the par
value credit to the Company’s share capital and HK$123,750,000,
before the share issue expenses, credit to the share premium account.
The Company’s total number of issued shares was increased to
500,000,000 shares upon completion of the share offer.

On 25 November 2015, pursuant to the resolution of the then
shareholders of the Company, it was approved to issue 374,999,900
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to the shareholders by way of
capitalisation of HK$3,749,999 from the share premium account arose
from the placing of 125,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company.
Such shares were issued on 17 December 2015, being the date of
completion of share offer.

As the Reorganisation of the Group was completed on 14
August 2015, the share capital of the Group in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015 represented
the aggregated share capital of the Company and Yee Hop
Engineering Company Limited.

29. BRAN ()
Bt - (48)

(b)

ENAREBR2015F8 8148 Tk E

MR2015F 11 A25H © AREHETE
[i% 7 55 48 15 2% BE S 1,522,000,000 B &
[REEEE0.01 TR - A
380,0007C# =% 15,600,0007T ©

REBESEARIERANRARN2015F8H 14
ARAIYH Assetsliig&E G0 E 20 31T
BRAHRE(REAMYH AssetsBr 2% &
B1T9MR D (R EABRIIERR)) ©

HR2015F 128178 » ARARIEERS
TR MIRERBE10TNERETA
+ 125,000,000 f% & A% M 1B /5 % 0.01
THEER - EMERBEBABELSE
125,000,000 7t A+ 7 # 1,250,000 7T
(EEREE)FTARABBRAE - W
123,750,000 7T (0B A% 0 B 1T R 2
AR ABRMDHER - RERHDEER
Mg ARRBEITRMDAEEMNE
500,000,000 °

2015511 A258 © REAR AR
MR HFERER - AR R ERESBE
Bt & KA §)125,000,000 A% 3 378 A% 7= 4
)RR 17 V4 {8 AR AP B 75 15 3,749,999 7T
FEER - MK EE17374,999,900 0% &
REMES0.01 TR LB - X ERHD
72015512 8178 (BIRR {7 3 & 52K
A )T -

4 REBREZE2015F3A831HH
RAMBERRARAOBA KRR R KR FE
ATRERARNEHBA -
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30. COMMITMENTS 30. &L

The Group as lessee KEFERAFA

The Group leases its office properties, site offices, storage AEERBELEHETHHER
area, staff quarter and machinery under operating lease #/j#/“*%% WEMAE - 7R
arrangement. Leases are negotiated for an original term of @ BIES AR - &K
three years. At the end of each reporting period, the Group BHEVNSEP=F - REE®R
had future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable LR - ANEBRE A A L
operating leases which fall due as follows: EHER T 55 AR 8 R 2R &

EHEERFIT

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T 117
Within one year —FR 2,737 1,907 .
In the second to fifth years inclusive £ -ZFhF(BIEEEME) 1,329 181 :8
4,066 2,088 £z
23
=8
e
2016 2015 %
HK$’000 HK$'000 B
BMT T BT :
Capital commitments contracted for ~ R4EE B R REzR D ETLER -
but not provided in the consolidated 1 #) & A FHE -
financial statements in respect of:
— Acquisition of property, plantand ~ —URBEYIEE « HLSR B G
equipment = 2,444
31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31. HARAE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had provided the RIEER - REBELHUTER :
following guarantees:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Guarantees in respect of performance B4 T AEE TR
bonds in favor of its clients B4R PRIEER 69,636 51,149
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it was not RKAREERE  BEERANAEER
probable that a claim would be made against the Group under REBZWAEERK  WREE
the guarantee; therefore, no provision for such guarantee was 20164 20153 A31H IEFE MR
made in the consolidated financial statements for the years AU BRERERETBEERIELEMA

ended 31 March 2016 and 2015. B -
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32.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had pledged
the following assets to banks and other financial institution to
secure the banking and finance lease facilities granted to the
Group:

32. EEEKH

RBEMR  AEECERUTEE
TIRITREMSRERE - URRT A
SEMRTT MR EHE R E (FER

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT

Plant and equipment He2S K R 44,228 55,863
Other receivable E fth FEUFRIR 1,157 96
Bank deposits RITER 2,032 4,026
47,417 59,985

33.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was
adopted pursuant to a written resolution of the Company passed
on 25 November 2015 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees, and will expire on
24 November 2025. Under the Scheme, the board of directors
of the Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the Company
may, from time to time, grant share options to outside third
parties for settlement in respect of goods or services provided to
the Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number
of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options
granted and may be granted to any individual in any one year
is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue during any 12-month period, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders.

33.

URHOR/ERNNRS

RRTIRERAERT B ([5ETEl ) TR
BARRNBR20155611 A25HEE 5 M
EEREEREBIRERBBANE
R ZZEI TR 15722025511 A
248 B8 - IRIEZATE  ARRES
gaREEREE (REARE REW
BARESR) R EREARERAT
B o it - AR BB BER A ISR
Z AR HERELESRARQ R RE
HEE MRS ©

REARRNRIBRRE LA - BRIEZ
B A] RE IR h HO BB A M O B D AR 2R T
FHBARRBMERR RS BHTRN
B10% ° REARRBIRE LI
LA R RER A LR L RATgER
A BB A Y B B AT S T RITARD
B FHEBARR B REMRN21E A HifE
BEEITRDAI% °



33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Options may be exercised at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not exceed 10 years from the
offer date subject to the provisions of early termination thereof,
and provided that the Board may determine the minimum
period for which an option has to be held or other restrictions
before its exercise. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company, and will not be less than the higher
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s share.

No share option has been granted since the Scheme has been
adopted. As at 31 March 2016, there are no outstanding share
options issued under the Scheme.

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, during the year, the Group entered into
transactions with related parties as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R A

33.

34.

RGO AERNARES @)

REFGritET A NMSRBBEER
& BAHE0FENHER - BkE
A S By AR SR BB A A A B GRTT A2 - 1
EEeNETERRETEMNARE
MR IR S B R ] o TEBHA
NRAIEFETE  BTHRERUTES
EF()ARFBRMHRE L BB UH
B (MR RERR L B A hEE
XAMFHYHE KA 2RI
METE °

AR ZATEIEWER - BERHER
#E o A20164E3 318 © RIEZTE
EE B TE N RI TR -

B SR 5
PR A B I RR PR A 5 R
E9) - REERNE R T
T TFIRS

-+ 91/5107 Hoday [enuuy
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2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ST T
Related party Nature of transaction RFHE
2]y
Pioneer National Rental expenses Mekx
Development Limited
BIEHERERAR 909 600
Celebright Limited Reimbursement expenses &
BAEBR AR 929 228
Chun Wai Engineering Rental and site expense  fA& KBRS
Company
REIEGRAR] = 348
Chun Wai Cranes Limited  Rental and site expense ~ fA& M8
REMEERAR] 7,042 1,431

The above transaction was conducted at terms determined LR GRS RGN AR
on a basis mutually agreed between the Group and REEAETEE BRKEIT - AR
the related parties. The directors of the Company have RIESN LM TS EnE

beneficial interest in the above mentioned related parties. s
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

35.

36.

The directors of the Company has provided unlimited
personal guarantees and deposits of for the grant of
banking facilities to the Group as disclosed in note 25.

The directors of the Company consider that they and
one employee are the key management personnel of the
Group. Other than remuneration paid to the directors of
the Company and debentures held for the benefits in kind
of the director of the Company as disclosed in note 13 and
18, the Company paid significant compensation to one key
management personnel during the years ended 31 March
2016 and 2015, details of which are disclosed in note 14.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into finance lease arrangements in respect
of plant and machinery with a total capital value at the
inception of the leases of approximately HK$10,526,000 (2015:
HK$12,827,000).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF")
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the MPF are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. The retirement benefit cost for the
MPF charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income represents contributions payable to
the fund by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5%
of relevant payroll costs, capped at HK$1,500 per month, to
the MPF Scheme, in which the contribution is matched by the
employee.

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$6,362,000 (2015: HK$5,339,000) for the year ended 31
March 2016. The payment represents contributions payable to
these schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting
period.

34. BEE AR B (&)

35.

36.

HINMEE25PFHEE - ARRES
AAREERRITRERME L
RAEATER AT

RAREERARER—FREE
ABAEBENETEEIEAE - KX
T AR B E B/ B 5 a0 b
T3S ENARRAGIEEE
VR EBFENES 2 - RAF]
D RIREE2016%F X 201543 A
BSTHLEFER—RZBFEEREAS
S EEHH - B ERNE
14 o

FEFBRERS
AEBERERRBET L REHESR
B REERERrEBRBEERER
%) 578%10,526,0007C (20154 : B
12,827,0007T) °

RRBRIFTE

RAEBERREBBMEAEREERY
mEEATEE ([BRES DFHE - Bi&
SEEAAEEEENHTA  BX
FEAZGNESER - REEEEN
Hib 2 E s R TR @ SRR
BRIRA BB AREIRBTRESFT SR
AUPTRTARLL R AR E S MK -

HEELFEKNEME - ANERILE
M T A AR5 % Moa A S A8 fEH
Mo & AHERERAEK1,5000T ¢ i
1B B Wk RIFHER] -

HE2016F3A31HILEE - RgE
B EMm 2 AU RPN RRK

#55,339,0007T) ° ZEHRBARNEE
MAS AR R L SaT A HK -
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 37. RA BN AR R &R
THE COMPANY

The Company

KA T
2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$’'000
Hiat BT T BT
Non-Current Asset FREEE
Investment in a subsidiary RIBRAFRIRE 14,808 -
Current Assets REBEE
Prepayments TERTFIE 280 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries Ay NGIE ] @) 110,840 -
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHR LIRS 1,390 - > <
112,510 - 73
3g
Current Liabilities FBEE 58
Other payables and accruals H b e~ F0E K e E A 363 - =3
Tax payable FERTFRIE 121 - i
%5
484 - i
]
Net Current Assets REBEETE 112,026 - %
Net Assets EEEE 126,834 -
Capital and Reserves ERRHE
Share capital &N 5,000 -
Reserves B b) 121,834 -
Total Equity R 126,834 -
Notes: Bst
(@ The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, carry prevailing (a) [EWMBARFIEAEKE IRERM

market interest rate and are repayable on demand. SR B RBIRERK(EE -
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
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37. XA T AR R IR ()

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) Kiat o (48)

(b)  Movements in reserves (b)y fFEEE

Share Merger Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
N EHEE e | st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT
As at 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 R201454/718 -

and 1 April 2015 2015%3A31H K&

201544 A1H - - - -
Loss and total comprehensive FAREER

income for the year FalResE - - (5,557) (5,557)
Reorganisation HH - 14,808 - 14,808
Issue of new shares in connection PAR B _ BTG

with the listing of the Company (H1&£29(d))

(Note 29(d)) 123,750 - - 123,750
Share issue expenses R BT TRZ (7,417) - - (7,417)
Capitalisation issue of shares BRI CBEITRD

(Note 29(e)) (B15£29()) (3,750) - (3,750)
As at 31 March 2016 20163 H31H 112,583 14,808 (5,557) 121,834
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38. SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016
and 2015 are as follows:

Place of incorporation/  Place of

Name of subsidiaries establishment
AL/
WEAREH RS

YH Investments

The British Virgin lslands

(the "BVI")
e EERAHEE
([2ERTES))
YH Engineering Holdings Limited The BV
YHEngineering Holdings Limited ~ EERLES
YH Construction Holdings Limited ~~ The BVI
YH Construction Holdings Limited ~~ EER&ES

operation

b

Hong Kong

mH

#

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

mH

£

38. B

3

20165 KX 2015F3A31H « A F]
M AR FIEEHINAT -

Issued and fully Percentage of equity
paid share capital/ interest/voting power
registered capital attributable to the Company
BRTRMERE/
iR KORELRE/ FAEASL
2016 2015
Direct Indirect  Direct Indirect
ER MR ER ER
Ordinary shares 100% 100%
US$1,000
EER1,000%7 100% 100%
Ordinary shares 100% 100%
US$1,000
EER1,000%7 100% 100%
Ordinary shares 100% 100%
US$1,000
EER1,000%7 100% 100%

Principal activities

TERE

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding
RERK
Investment holding

REER
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38. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

Name of subsidiaries establishment
AL/
(il k2 RAKE

YH Foundations Holdings Limited The BVI

YHFoundations Holdings Limited ~ EER&ES

Yee Hop Engineering Hong Kong
oIk (35
Yee Hop Construction Hong Kong
EARE Bt
Y H. Foundations Hong Kong
FoiE B

Issued and fully

Place of paid share capital/
operation registered capital

BRTRARKRAK/
BEny iftEs

HongKong ~ Ordinary shares

US$1,000
Bk EAR1,000% 7
HongKong ~ Ordinary shares
HK$14,800,001
14,800,0017T

HongKong ~ Ordinary shares
HK$1,000
10007

HongKong ~ Ordinary shares
HK$1,000
10007

39. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The tables below show details of the subsidiary that have non-
controlling interests material to the Group during current and

prior years:

Proportion of effective interests held by f1 3F#% R EZS I B N B 25

38. fiB AR (®)

Percentage of equity
interest/voting power
attributable to the Company Principal activities

ADFRGERE RVER AL IBER
2016 2015
Direct Indirect  Direct Indirect

EF  BR  ER EE

100% - 100%  Investment holding

100% - 0% RERRK

100% - 100%  Engineering and construction
100% - 00%  TEEE

100% - 100%  Construction contracting
100% - 100%  EEAR

100% - 884%  Engineering and construction
100% - B4%  TEEE

39. JFIZRER
TRIFRAFERBEFEERY
AR E 5 B B A SRS I B

AR :

2016 2015

non-controlling interests HEZS L 151 0% 11.6%
Voting rights held by non-controlling  f1JE1Z A% i3 A HOIR Z 4
interests 0% 11.6%

On 14 November 2014 and 31 May 2015, the non-controlling
shareholders of Y.H. Foundation transferred 117 and 116
shares to Mr. Jim Yin Kwan, Jackin and Mr. Chui Mo Ming
at considerations of HK$700,000 and HK$116, representing
11.7% and 11.6% of total issued share capital of the entity

respectively.

2014411 14 8 & 201545 A 31
H ZAmEIFEERBRESFIMAE
HBTERGRBILEEURESE
700,0007T K 8 #1160 2 117 IR
MR116IRAR D - BENEEEEHITR
RAAZEE1.7% % 11.6% ©

#H 91/5107 Hoday [enuuy

DI SR ERFIp i PavWI sBuipjoH doH 994



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M BRRME

39. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 39. FFIEMRRER ()
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BRI
(Loss) profit attributable to FEAE FEIEAR R 2R ) (518 ) i )
non-controlling interests (28) 645
Accumulated non-controlling interests 2 &t 3EIE IR E S - 844
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's BEEHASBEMEBERNEKNIEE
subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material i e 2 ) AN 5= BB B 8 B A9 BT sl B 75
to the Group is set out below. The summarised financial BRER T o TXBE A B 5 E R
information below represents amounts before intra-group REBNEHEATNEEE -
> eliminations.
33 Y.H. Foundations ZoE
Efs
35 As at 31 March 2015
i@ 20154
3 3A318
?‘L‘:’E\I‘ HK$'000
# BETT
R
z Non-current assets EREEE 28,082
- Current assets BB E 12,116
Current liabilities nBaE (26,699)
Non-current liabilities E nEIA=NE (6,211)
Equity attributable to owner of the Company JEMR AR B E AR HE 6,444

Non-controlling interests eSS 844
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39. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

39. FEIERER ()

Y.H. Foundations (Continued) EEMWE(E)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
HZE2016%F HZE20154
3A31ALLEE 3A31HIEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Revenue Wzs 63,639 62,576
Other income and other gains E A A R E A as 484 933
Expenses 3 54,652 57,449
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 A3t Fll & & E WA 4258
for the year 9,471 6,060
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive & R (E518) R 2 E A
income (expense) for the year (P ) #e%a
Owner of the Company AR A 9,499 5,415
Non-controlling interests AR R (28) 645
9,471 6,060
Net cash inflow from operating IRESTENEIR SR A
activities 9,424 17,199
Net cash outflow from HEEFRS M
investing activities (15) (4,399)
Net cash outflow from financing MEEEFRE AL
activities (10,632) (11,263)
Net cash (outflow) inflow FAReRDRERA (1,223) 1,537
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Four Year Financial Summary

FHBEE

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for each of
the three years ended 31 March 2013, 2014 and 2015 and of the
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Company as at 31 March
2013, 2014 and 2015 has been extracted from the Prospectus. No
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012

have been published.

REFE E20134F - 20145F 22015453 A
BNHEEZAFESFNRAEERANT
20134 ~ 20144 20153 A31 B4R
AEENABNHEREABRER - &
EENENEEE2012F3831HIEFEY
BTS3RK -

#-r 91/510¢ Hoday [enuuy
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS me¥E
For the year ended 31 March HE3A3MHLFE
2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BETT BT RS T RS TT
Revenue Yz 704,393 577,333 404,371 320,991
Cost of services BRISAC AR (530,887) (415,259) (332,920) (260,390)
Gross profit EF| 173,506 162,074 71,451 60,601
Other income Hblg A 3,413 6,594 3,566 5,648
Administrative expenses THFAX (62,247) (60,700) (44,071) (38,169)
Finance costs BEMA (1,603) (1,767) (2,042) (1,515)
Profit before taxation B AR 113,069 106,201 28,904 26,565
Income tax expense Fr{S B (18,803) (19,555) (4,723) (4,405)
Profit and total comprehensive income 4E 3% F | 2 E A
for the year B 94,266 86,646 24,181 22,160
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES mEEERERE
As at 31 March M3H31H
2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BETT BT T RS T PRSI
Non-current assets FEREEE 71,443 82,920 87,002 62,406
Current assets TEEE 310,801 266,210 203,155 103,675
Current liabilities mEBE 136,755 (183,617) (158,555) (62,799)
Net current assets TEEERE 174,046 82,593 44,600 40,876
Total assets less current liabilities BEESERLDAEE 245,489 165,513 131,602 103,282
Non-current liabilities EREaE 21,187 (25,868) (40,803) (36,664)
Net assets BESE 224,302 139,645 90,799 66,618




In this annual report (other than the Independent Auditor’s Report
and Financial Information), unless the context otherwise requires, the
following expression shall have the following meanings:

“2016 Financial Year”

“2015 Corresponding
Year”

"AGM”

“Articles”

“Board”
“BVI”
“CG Code”

“Company”

“Company Law”

“connected person(s)”

“Controlling
Shareholder(s)"”

“Directors”

"Group”

“HK$”

“"Hong Kong" or
"HK

“Independent Third
Party(ies)”

“INED"

“JJ1318”

for the year ended 31 March 2016

for the year ended 31 March 2015

Annual general meeting of the Company

the Articles of Association of the Company, as
amended from time to time

the board of Directors of the Company
the British Virgin Islands
the Corporate Governance Code

Yee Hop Holdings Limited, an exempted
company incorporated in Cayman lIslands
with limited liability, the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange

The Company Law (as revised) of the
Cayman Islands, as amended, modified and
supplemented from time to time

has the meaning ascribed to it under the
Listing Rules

has the meaning ascribed thereto under
the Listing Rules and, in the context of the
Company, means each of Mr. Jim, Mr. Chui,
JJ1318 MM1318 and YH Assets

the director(s) of the Company
the Company and its subsidiaries

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of
Hong Kong”

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
of the PRC

individual(s) or a company(ies) who is (or are)
independent of and not a connected person
or connected persons (within the meaning
of the Listing Rules) with any directors, Chief
Executive or substantial Shareholders (within
the meaning under the Listing Rules) of our
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any of
their respective associates

the Independent Non-executive Directors
JJ1318 Holdings Limited, a company

incorporated in the BVI, is wholly owned by
Mr. Jim and is a Controlling Shareholder

BUT®EE

[2016F M IRFE ] BZ201653A31BILFR
[20154 A5 ] BZE2015F3A318 L5E
[REAFAE] ADARTEFAS
[E12485 ] @gﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬂiﬂ‘l ST
[E2g] KAARESE
[RBEIES] HBRLHS
[EERTA]  EEARTH

[RAR] ERERERDA - RHESH
B IHEREERA
8] KRR T

[ARLE] SRS ARNE(EER) &
TEHER] » BERRAET

(AL BB EMRAIFE T R®RE

[1ERRARER | BB ETRRAME THERE -
BRARAIME @ BEXE
BEE 11318 MM1318J%
YH Assets

=3 ARRES

[REE ] ARRIREKTBAR

[ | BEETEEEE

[&H7%] HEE BRI THE

BURARE - EEFMEL
RIMEMES « TRTHAR
FEERR(ERR LMAR)
FWESANBEABRKE
MERE(EER LMRADE
ALTHRA

(BuE=7]

[EIEMTES] BUFNTES
[11318] 111318 Holdings Limited * 735
BRZESTMKARE
%%%i%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%
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Glossary

ERAWAR

“Listing”
“Listing Rules”

“Main Board”

“MM1318”

“Model Code”
“Mr. Chui”

“Mr. Jim"”

“Mr. Pang”
"Prospectus”
“SFO"
“Shares”

“Share Option
Scheme”

“Shares Offer”

“Stock Exchange”

“Yee Hop
Engineering”

“YH Assets”

“Y.H. Foundations”

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board
on 18 December 2015

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange

the main board of the Stock Exchange

MM1318 Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the BVI, is wholly owned by
Mr. Chui and is a Controlling Shareholder

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers

Mr. CHUI Mo Ming (1R BH), an Executive
Director and a Controlling Shareholder

Mr. JIM Yin Kwan Jackin(ZZ# &), an
Executive Director and a Controlling
Shareholder

Mr. Pang Wai (821&), an ex-shareholder and
ex-director of Y.H. Foundations

the prospectus in relation to the Shares Offer
of the Company dated 8 December 2015

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the laws of Hong Kong)

Shares issued by the Company, with a
nominal value of HK$0.01 each

the share option scheme adopted by the
Company pursuant to the written resolutions
of the Shareholders of the Company passed
on 25 November 2015

the public offer and placing of totaling
125,000,000 new Shares of the Company
at the offer price of HK$1.00 under the
Prospectus

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Yee Hop Engineering Limited (& TI2ER
72 A)), a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and an indirect subsidiary
of the Company

Yee Hop Assets Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
a Controlling Shareholder

Y.H. Foundations Limited (E&EABR A
B]), a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and an indirect subsidiary
of the Company
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